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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of

Harim Corporation

Audit Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of HarorpGration (“the Company”), which comprise the staénts
of financial position as of December 31, 2024 a@23 the statements of comprehensive income, ceanggjuity
and cash flows for the years then ended, and naiegrising significant accounting policies andestexplanatory
information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statetsgmesent fairly, in all material respects, thmaficial position
of the Company as of December 31, 2024 and 202Bitsfinancial performance and its cash flowstfe years
then ended in accordance with Korea Internatioimari€ial Reporting Standards (“K-IFRS”).

We, also, audited the Internal Control over FinahBieporting of Harim Corporation as of December 3124
based on the ‘Design and Operation Concept Systdntesnal Control over Financial Reporting and mgsed
unqualified opinion in the audit report dated onrMa, 2025.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Korgand&ards on Auditing (KSAs). Our responsibilitieslaer those
standards are further described in the AuditorsResibilities for the Audit of the Financial Staents section of
our report. We are independent of the Companyéora@ance with the ethical requirements that arvegit to our
audit of the financial statements in Republic ofré&a and we have fulfilled our other ethical resloitities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe tii@taudit evidence we have obtained is sufficiamd
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in cofiegsional judgment, were of most significancetunaudit of the
financial statements as of and for the year endstbBber 31, 2024. These matters were addressee aomtext
of our audit of the financial statements as a whalel in forming our opinion thereon, and we do protvide a
separate opinion on these matters

Occurrence of Revenue from Contracts with Customers
A. Reason decided as a key audit matter

As described in Note 2 to the financial statemethis,Company recognizes revenue when control ofjtiogls or
services is transferred to the customer. Revenumnés of the representative performance indicatoat key
management monitors closely, and from the usenmsppetive, revenue represents the Company's opgrati



performance. Accordingly, there is an inherent a&verstating revenue to meet targets or exgeosatTherefore,
we have determined that there is a significant redlted to the occurrence of revenue and haveséacwur
attention on this area.

B. How to address the key audit matters in Audit
We conducted audit procedures including the betovespond to the key audit matters
- Obtain an understanding and reviewing of the regeraognition process and accounting policies.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control reldtethe occurrence of product and merchandise aalt$est
the design and operating effectiveness of key obntr

- Perform the substantive procedures to verify thistemce of contracts, identification of performance
obligations and fulfillment of performance obligais for a sample of customers.

- Obtain the confirmation of accounts receivable theds for a sample of customers and perform thenalige
procedures for non-responding customers.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged thi Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation aingfesentation of the financial statements iroedance with
K-IFRS, and for such internal control as managerdetdgrmines is necessary to enable the prepaxatiomancial
statements that are free from material misstatenadrether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, managensergsponsible for assessing the Company's ahiigontinue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable arsatelated to going concern and using the goingexm basis of
accounting unless management either intends taladgi the Company or to cease operations, or haealigtic

alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsiblevinseeing the Company’s financial reporting process

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurasmgt avhether the financial statements as a whadrae from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud orreanad to issue an auditors’ report that includes apinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurbuti,does not guarantee that an audit conductedéordance
with KSAs will always detect a material misstatet@hen it exists. Misstatements can arise fromdrauerror

and are considered material if, individually otle aggregate, they could reasonably be expectedluence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basltsesktfinancial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with KSAs, wereise professional judgment and maintain profesdion
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatgrmf the financial statements, whether due todi@ar error,
design and perform audit procedures responsiveotetrisks, and obtain audit evidence that iscafft and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. Tibk of not detecting a material misstatementltegufrom
fraud is higher than for one resulting from eres fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentibomissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internakdn



* Obtain an understanding of internal control relévarthe audit in order to design audit procedues are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for thepse of expressing an opinion on the effectivenéshe
Company’s internal control.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policsesl in the preparation of the financial statesiant the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and relsdsures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management'sfuke going concern basis of accounting and,dase
the audit evidence obtained, whether a materiattainty exists related to events or conditions thay cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to comw as a going concern. If we conclude that a maéter
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw atbenith our auditors’ report to the related disclesuin the
financial statements or, if such disclosures asgléguate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusiores lzased
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date o&oditors’ report. However, future events or cdinds may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a goimge.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure amdert of the financial statements, including thecltisures,
and whether the financial statements representrttlerlying transactions and events in a mannegtttaeves
fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governaagarding, among other matters, the planned scapgraimg
of the audit and significant audit findings, indlugl any significant deficiencies in internal conttwat we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance witatement that we have complied with relevantaith
requirements regarding independence and communiggtethem all relationships and other matters thaty
reasonably be thought to bear on our independamcewhere applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those chargéudgavernance, we determine those matters thatefenest
significance in the audit of the financial statetisesf the current period and are therefore theskait matters. We
describe these matters in our auditors’ reportasmlaw or regulation precludes public disclosureualthe matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we deterrhat a matter should not be communicated inreport
because the adverse consequences of doing so reaglohably be expected to outweigh the publicéstdrenefits
of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resultingigninidependent auditors’ report is CPA, Hwang Y&aok.



Samil PricewaterhouseCoopers

Representative Director YOON Hoon Soo
100 Hangang-daero, Yongsan-gu, Seoul

March 13, 2025

This report is effective as of the audit reporeddlarch 13, 2025 Certain subsequent events or circumstan
which may occur between the audit report date hadiine of reading thieport, could have a material impg
on the accompanying financisatements and notes thereto. Accordingly, theersaaf the audit report shou
understand that there is a possibility that thevataudit report may have to be revised to refleetinpact of

such subsequent events or circumstances, if any.
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Harim Corporation
Statements of Financial Position
As of December 31, 2024 and 2023

(In thousands of Korean won)

Account Note December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Assets
I. Current Assets 299,838,757 321,545,079
Cash and cash equivalents 457 36,303,343 40,503,091
Short-term financial instruments 45,7 10,000,000 23,170,000
Trade and other receivables 5,11,36 89,324,534 87,456,819
Other financial assets 58 - 471,310
Inventories 9 118,534,576 130,859,614
Biological assets 10 41,367,032 34,398,132
Current tax assets 33 308,918 -
Other current assets 12 4,000,354 4,686,113
Il. Non-current assets 506,459,606 500,697,685
Long-term financial instruments 45,7 22,512,169 14,241,058
Long-term trade and other receivables 5,11,36 8,689,807 7,066,839
Investment in subsidiaries 13 26,053,025 26,053,025
Investment properties 14,15 20,400,184 20,628,328
Property, plant and equipment 15,35,36 405,207,494 420,388,090
Intangible assets 17 1,956,730 1,140,946
Other non-current assets 12 2,369,924 -
Deferred tax assets 33 15,027,034 7,133,596
Right-of-use asset 16 4,152,344 4,045,803
Defined benefit assets 22 90,895 -
Total Assets 806,298,363 822,242,764
Liabilities
I. Current Liabilities 513,423,941 427,292,002
Trade and other payables 5,18,36 103,276,256 108,324,267
Short-term borrowings 5,19,23,35 405,413,176 313,832,309
Other financial liabilities 5,8,20 609,130 -
Current lease liabilities 5,16,35 2,238,772 2,044,396
Current tax liabilities 33 - 1,233,405,
Other current liabilities 21,28 1,886,607, 1,857,625,
1. Non-current liabilities 17,191,740 94,257,445
Long-term trade and other payables 5,18 1,464,357, 921,695
Long-term borrowings 5,19,23,35 14,080,000 91,038,900
Long-term lease liabilities 5,16,35 1,647,383 1,726,913
Defined benefit liabilities 22 - 569,937
Total Liabilities 530,615,681 521,549,447




Account Note December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Equity

|. Capital 24 53,104,851 53,104,851
Il. Capital surplus 24 256,293,544 256,293,544
I1l. Other capital items 25 (27,437,961 (27,437,961
IV. Retained earnings 26 (6,277,752 18,732,883
Total Equity 275,682,682 300,693,317
Total Liabilities and Equity 806,298,363 822,242,764

The accompanied notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



For Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

Harim Corporation
Statements of Comprehensive Income

(In thousands of Korean won)

Account Note 2024 2023

I. Sales 27,36 1,233,745,815 1,358,340,380
Il. Cost of sales 30,36 1,055,319,177 1,160,080,929
Ill. Gross profit 178,426,638 198,259,451
IV. Selling and administrative expenses 29,3( 156,307,437 162,902,488
V. Operating profits 22,119,201 35,356,963
VI. Other income or loss 31,36 8,352,663 (2,832,519)

Other profits 9,482,720 4,471,452

Other expenses 1,130,057 7,303,971
VII. Financial income or loss 5,8,32 (55,472,424) (20,512,303)

Financial income 16,994,642 26,911,843

Financial expenses 72,467,064 47,424,146
VIII. Income before tax (25,000,560) 12,012,141
IX. Income tax expense 33 (7,034,703) 1,962,431
X. Net Income (17,965,857) 10,049,710
XI. Other comprehensive income (3,859,163) (3,318,577)
Items not subsequently reclassified to profit @sto

Remeasurements of defined benefit plans 22,33 (3,859,163) (3,318,577)
XIl. Total comprehensive income (21,825,020) 6,731,133
XIll. Earnings per share 34

Basic earnings per share (169) 95

The accompanied notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



Harim Corporation

Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity
For Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

(In thousands of Korean won)

Account Capital Capital surplus gg;r?;gr?gri:? ! Retained earnings Subtotal
Balance at Jan 1, 2023 53,104,851 256,293,544 (27,437,961 14,125,494 296,085,928
Net Income - - - 10,049,710 10,049,710
Dividend payment - - - (2,123,744 (2,123,744
Remeasurements for net defined benefit plans - - - (3,318,577 (3,318,577
Balance at Dec 31, 2023 53,104,851 256,293,544 (27,437,961 18,732,883 300,693,317
Balance at Jan 1, 2024 53,104,851 256,293,544 (27,437,961 18,732,883 300,693,317
Net loss - - - (17,965,857 (17,965,857
Dividend payment - - - (3,185,615 (3,185,615
Remeasurements for net defined benefit plans - - - (3,859,163 (3,859,163
Balance at Dec 31, 2024 53,104,851 256,293,544 (27,437,961 (6,277,752 275,682,682

The accompanied notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



Harim Corporation
Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

(In thousands of Korean won)

Account 2023 2022
I. Cash flow from operating activities 74,401,262 74,176,041
(1) Net income (loss) (17,965,857) 10,049,710
(2) Adjustment 118,822,931 97,783,297
Income tax expense (profit) (7,034,703) 1,962,431
Depreciation 40,809,831 41,983,366
Depreciation of investment property 687,061 690,090
Amortization of intangible assets 274,480 423,682
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 3,413,%40 3,303,571
Depreci_ation of biological assets for 10,367,644 19,483,296
productiot
Loss(reversal) on valuation of inventories 1,398,8 335,054
Loss on valuation of derivatives 609,180 196,080
Gain on valuation of derivatives - (469,200)
Loss on transaction of derivatives 32,428,925 19,642,581
Gain on transaction of derivatives (13,828,440) (19,418,494)
Retirement benefits 7,465,599 7,216,746
Loss on disposal of PP&E 88,938 160,676
Gain on disposal of PP&E (114,207) (278,218)
Loss on disposal of intangible assets 1 3
Loss on disposal of investment property - 276,302
Gain on disposal of investment property (9,061) (422,849)
Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets (25,301) (61,634)
I;Sks):igir;iglssposal of investment in ) 94.215
Bad debt expenses 400,768 (193,719)
Interest income (2,874,495) (2,802,358)
Interest expense 20,646,658 21,299,335
ﬁhanges in fair va]ue of biological assets (3,457,037) 668,360
eld for consumptic
Impairment loss on PP&E - 5,646,578
Gain on foreign currency translation (4,158) (2,487,307)
Loss on foreign currency translation 10,001,268 547,904
Gain on foreign currency transaction (194,303) -
Loss on foreign currency transaction 8,771,619 -
Greenhouse gas emission liabilities 6,318 (13,194)
(3) Changes in net working capital (4,984,546) (13,629,875)
Decrease (increase) in trade receivables (6,992,978 (18,191,823)
Decrease (increase) in other receivables (7,965,872 1,274,940
Decrease (increase) in inventories 10,300,875 (1,337,613)
Decrease_(increase) in biological assets fo (448 257) 9,694,733
consumptio
Decrease (increase) in other assets (763,718) (1,013,844)
Increase (decrease) in trade payables 9,575,797 4,400,183
Increase (decrease) in other payables 5,946,473 (440,434)
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities (1,630)594 (1,448,572)
Payment of severance pay (6,709,226) (6,960,436)
Decrease (increase) in plan assets (6,296,046) 392,991
(4) Receipt of interest 1,978,242 2,315,394
(5) Payment of interest (22,068,128) (20,490,081)
(6) Income tax refund (payment amount) (1,381,380) (1,852,404)
Il. Cash flow from investing activities (73,638,374) (21,808,180)
Decrease in short-term financial instruments 17,A00 109,060,381
Increase in short-term financial instruments (2,000) (58,425,000)




Decrease in short-term security deposits 5,718|657 16,966,475

Increase in short-term security deposits (29,239,%5 (23,704,501)

Decrease in long-term financial instrument$ 44,882 1,037,161

Increase in long-term financial instruments (15,928) (13,346,808)

Decrease in long-term deposit 1,747,929 1,784,480

Increase in long-term deposit (3,164,727) (391,118)

Decrease in other financial assets 2,110 1,325

Decrease in investment in subsidiary shares - 60,855

Disposal of investment property 110,000 796,100

Disposal of PP&E 185,738 389,313

Disposal of intangible assets - 127,000

Receipt of government grants 166,860 -

Acquisition of PP&E (27,551,014 (40,510,092)

Acquisition of intangible assets (190,016) (101,627)

Increase in biological assets for production (29,993) (17,440,834)

Settlement of derivatives 477,100 1,888,710
1. Cash flow from financing activitie (4,966,483) (61,048,808)

Increase in short-term borrowings 275,201,359 228,940,448

Repayment of short-term borrowings (263,594,2p5) (319,391,987)

ll_?ep_qyment of current portion of long-term (16,784,000) (10,690,000)

iabilities

Increase in long-term borrowings 6,200,000 45,000,000

Payment of dividends (3,185,61b) (2,123,744)

Repayment of lease liabilities (2,804,002) (2,783,525)
IV. Effect of exchange rate fluctuation on cash 3847 7160

anc cash equivalen ' '
V. Increase in cash and cash equivalents (I + I} +

H+1V) q ( (4,199,748) (8,673,787)
\VI. Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of

e yea q ginning 40,503,091 49,176,878
\VIl. Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 36,303,343 40,503,091

The accompanied notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

Harim Corporation

1. Overview of the Company

Harim Corporation (hereinafter referred to the “Qamy”) was established by spin-off of Harim Corpimna (before spin-
off) into Harim Holdings (Surviving entity after spoff) to engage in the investment division and trew corporation,
the Company to engage in the chicken processindesnthanufacturing business with a record dateofidry 1, 2011.

After the spin-off, the shares of the Company haeen re-listed on the KOSDAQ market in May 2, 28hdl the major
shareholders as of Dec 31, 2023 consist of HarimdiHgs Co., Ltd. (57.37%) and others.

2. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements and §nificant Accounting Policies
2.1 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

The financial statements have been prepared inr@daaoce with Korean International Financial Repgri8tandards (“K-
IFRS”), which is the accounting treatment standatdpted by the Republic of Korea based on therat&mal Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the InternationabAnting Standards Board, as prescribed in Arti¢19(3) of the Act on
External Audit of Stock Companies, etc.

The financial statements of the Company are sepdirsncial statements pursuant to the K-IFRS N271‘'Separate
Financial Statements’ and presented the investamsats by accounting standards based on the itivestment in shares
not based on performance and net assets.

The financial statements of the Company were amatdy the Board of Directors on February 11, 2@2#l which are
subject to final approval at the general meetinghareholders to be held on March 26, 2025

(1) Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared obatsis of historical cost, except for the major geémthe statement of
financial position listed below.

- Derivatives measured at fair value
- Biological assets for consumption measured awflire less the cost of sales
- Defined benefit plans and plan assets measurexir ataflue

(2) Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements of the Company have beepaped in functional currency, which is the cuesenf the main
economic environment in which the operations of@menpany are conducted. The financial statementiseco€Company
are prepared and reported in Korean Won (KRW), widdhe functional and presentation currency.



2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
2.2.1 Enacted and/or Amended Standards and Interptations adopted by the Company

The Company has newly applied the following enaeted/or amended standards and interpretationdéoa¢counting
period beginning on January 1, 2024.

(1) Amendment to K-IFRS No. 1001 ‘Presentation ivfalicial Statements’ — Classification of liabilgi@s current/non-
current, non-current liabilities with covenants

Liabilities are classified as current or non-cutreased on substantive rights that exist at theoéide reporting period,
and the possibility of exercising the right to de$ettlement of the liability or the managemenkpegtations are not
considered. Furthermore, the settlement of a Iltgliilay include the transfer of the entity's owmiiggiinstruments, except
for cases where an option to settle with the estiiyvn equity instruments in a compound finangiatrument meets the
definition of an equity instrument and is recogdiaeparately from the liability. In addition, coaens that an entity shall
comply with after the reporting period do not affte classification of the liability at the endtbé reporting period. If a
liability that is required to be complied with with12 months after the reporting period is classifas a non-current
liability at the end of the reporting period, infioation about the risk that the liability may betlget within 12 months after
the reporting period shall be disclos&tiis amendment has no significant impact orfitencial statements.

(2) Amendments to K-IFRS No. 1007 ‘Statements affiCalows’ and K-IFRS No. 1107 ‘Financial Instrungemisclosure’
— Disclosure of Supplier Finance Arrangements

When supplier finance arrangements are appliedrrimition about the supplier finance arrangementst i@ disclosed
to enable users of financial statements to askessffects of supplier finance arrangements orettigy's liabilities, cash
flows, and exposure to liquidity risk.

The Company has added disclosures about suppl@nde arrangement liabilities and the related fasfs in Notes 4
and 18.

(3) Amendment to K-IFRS No. 1116 ‘Leases’ - Leagbllity arising from a sale and leaseback

When subsequently measuring the lease liabilitgiragi from a sale and leaseback, lease paymentsvised lease
payments are determined in a way that does nogréo® any profit or loss related to the right of ustained by the seller-
lesseeThis amendment has no significant impact orfittencial statements.

(4) Amendment to K-IFRS No. 1001 ‘Presentation imdfcial Statements’ — ‘Disclosure of Virtual Asset

This amendment specifies additional disclosure ireqents in cases where virtual assets are heldrewirtual assets
are held on behalf of customers, and/or where aliigsets are issuethis amendment has no significant impact on the
financial statements.

2.2.2 Enacted and/or Amended Standards and Interptations not applied by the Company

The following newly enacted or amended standardsraerpretations have not been applied, as tlfieicteve dates have
not yet arrived.

(1) Amendments to K-IFRS No. 1021 ‘Effect of Chasge Foreign Exchange Rates’ and K-IFRS No. 110dstkime
Adoption of K-IFRS’ — Lack of Exchangeability

These amendments require an entity to assess wlaetherency is exchangeable with other curreremek if it is not, the
entity should estimate the spot exchange rate @ulbde the relevant information. These amendmenetto be applied
from the fiscal year beginning on January 1, 20&bthe early adoption is permitted. The Compartyisently reviewing
the impact of these amendments on the financitdrstants.

(2) Amendments to K-IFRS No. 1109 ‘Financial Instients’ and No. 1107 ‘Financial Instruments: Disales

K-IFRS No. 1109 ‘Financial Instruments’ and No. I1Binancial Instruments: Disclosure’ have been agieel to address
issues raised in practice and to include new requéints. These amendments are to be applied frorfistad year
beginning on January 1, 2026 and the early adoipermitted. The Company is currently reviewihg impact of these



amendments on the financial statements.

(3) K-IFRS Annual Improvement Volume 11

The K-IFRS Annual Improvement Volume 11 to be aggbfirom the fiscal year beginning on January 15221 the early
adoption is permitted. The Company expects thaethenendments have no significant impact on tlméial statements.

- K-IFRS No. 1101 ‘First-time Adoption of K-IFRS': Agtication of hedge accounting upon the first-tindegtion
of K-IFRS

- K-IFRS No. 1107 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosur&serecognition gain or loss, practical applicatguidance

- K-IFRS No. 1109 ‘Financial Instruments’: Accountifgg the derecognition of a lease liability and thedinition
of the transaction price

- K-IFRS No. 1110 ‘Consolidated Financial Statemeri&finition of a de facto agent
- K-IFRS No. 1007 ‘Statements of Cash Flows’: Costi\del

These amendments have no significant impact ofirtaacial statements.

2.3 Significant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies applied by @@mpany in preparation of its financial statemgnissuant to the K-
IFRS are included below. The accounting policigsos¢ below have been applied consistently to eiquls presented in
these financial statements, except for those agitled in Note 2.2.

(1) Investment in subsidiaries and affiliates

The financial statements of the Company are thara¢gfinancial statements pursuant to the K-IFRS1927. In relation
to the investment assets in subsidiaries andai#ii, the Company uses the cost method pursudrg EK6IFRS No. 1027.
Meanwhile, the dividends received from the subsiégaand affiliates are recognized as gain or kisthe time of
confirming the right to the dividends payments.

(2) Cash and cash equivalents

The Company classifies investment assets with ntiagiwithin 3 months from the acquisition datecash and cash
equivalents. Equity instruments are excluded fr@ashcequivalents but may be included in cash ecntslif they are
actually cash equivalents, such as preferred shaithsa fixed redemption date and a short periadnfthe acquisition
date to redemption date.

(3) Biological assets
(D Biological assets for consumption

Biological assets for consumption are measurediavlue less costs to sell which is the fair edkess estimated cost of
sales at the time of initial recognition and at ¢mel of each reporting period. In addition, crops/bsted from biological
assets are measured and evaluated at fair vakiedsts to sell at the time of harvest.

Valuation gains and losses arising from changeisdrfair value less costs to sell of biologicalets$or consumption are
reflected in profit or loss in the period in whitttey arise.

@ Biological assets for production

Biological assets for production are measured auiaition cost less accumulated depreciation anclraclated
impairment losses, as there is no active markebarparable market prices for such assets, transactire infrequent,



and it is difficult to reliably estimate expecteakt flows and current market interest rates.

Biological assets for production are depreciateédguthe straight-line method over the useful lifel6 months, which is
the breeding period, with a residual value of Z808) from the time when they can be spawned.

(4) Inventories

The unit cost of inventories is determined by thesg average method and acquisition cost includeshpse costs,
conversion costs and other costs necessary to ngrépeentories in a ready-to-use condition. Fixednofacturing
overhead costs included in the cost of producteak-in-process are allocated based on the norpatading level of
production facilities.

Inventories are measured at the lower of acquisitiost or net realizable value. Loss on valuatibimeentories written
down to net realizable value and all losses onlageiare recognized as expenses in the periodichwie write-down
or spoilage occurred. Reversal of loss on valuaifonventories due to an increase in the netzehle value of inventories
is deducted from the cost of sales for inventorge®gnized as an expense in the period in whiclhethersal occurred.

(5) Non-derivative financial assets
(D Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued #iddljnrecognized when they are originated. Alhet financial assets are
initially recognized when the Company becomes &ygarthe contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset excluding trade receivables witho significant financing component is initiallyeasured at fair value
plus, for an item not at financial assets measatefdir value through profit or loss, transactiarsts that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue. A tradegivable without a significant financing componisrinitially measured at
the transaction price.

@ Classification and subsequent measurement

On initial recognition, a financial asset is cléiesi as measured at amortized cost, debt instrisweaasured at fair value
through other comprehensive income, equity instntseneasured at fair value through other compréhemscome or
financial assets measured at fair value througfitpmoloss.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequéhtioinitial recognition unless the Company chesgs business model
for managing financial assets, in which case dc¢d financial assets are reclassified on tis fiay of the reporting
period following the change in the business model.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cdstieets both of the following conditions and ig designated as at fair
value through profit or loss.

— itis held within a business model whose objecisvi® hold assets to collect contractual cash flamsl

— its contractual terms give rise on specified débesash flows that are solely payments of princgrad interest on
the principal amount outstanding

Adebt instrument is measured at fair value throoitjler comprehensive income if it meets both ofdflewing conditions
and is not designated as at fair value throughitpmofoss.

— itis held within a business model whose objectsvachieved by both collection contractual caskwéiand selling
financial assets, and

— its contractual terms give rise on specified débesash flows that are solely payments of princgrad interest on
the principal amount outstanding

On initial recognition of an equity investment tlignot held for trading, the Company may irrevdgadect to present
subsequent changes in the investment's fair valwgher comprehensive income. However, once eledte@dnnot be



cancelled. This election is made on an investmgrittbestment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measurednadrtized cost of fair value through other compnsiee income as

described above are measured at fair value thrpugfit or loss. This includes all derivative finaalcassets. On initial

recognition, the Company may irrevocably desigadtaancial asset that otherwise meets the reqeingsito be measured
at amortized cost or at fair value through othenprehensive income as at fair value through pmfitoss if doing so

eliminates or significantly reduces an accountirignmatch that would otherwise arise. However, oreeted, it cannot

be cancelled.

The Company evaluates the objectives of businestehtteld at the portfolio level of financial assbecause it best
reflects how the business is managed and informéiprovided to management. Such information a@rsifollowings:

- Accounting policies and objectives specified fioe portfolio and the actual operation of thesegmsd which include
management’s strategies focused on obtaining anarnterest income, maintaining a certain levelirgérest rate,
matching the duration of the liabilities to finartbe financial asset with the duration of the ficiahasset, and outflow or
realization of the expected cash flow through sélihe assets

- Method of evaluating the performance of finaneissets held in the business model and reportingvhluation to key
management

- Risks that affect the performance of the busimesdel (and financial assets held in the businesdeth and how those
risks are managed

- Compensation method for management (for exanalsed on the fair value of the assets under marexgesn based
on the contractual cash flows received)

- Frequency, amount, timing, reason, and forecattare sales activities of financial assets ia gast period

For this purpose, a transaction that transferaanfiial asset to a third party, which does notityutdr derecognition, is
not considered as a sale.

Portfolios of financial assets that meet the dgéiniof trading or whose performance is evaluated fair value basis are
measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets: Assessment of whether contracasdl flows consist only of principal and interest.

“Principal” is defined as the fair value of a firal asset on initial recognition. Interest corsist consideration for the
time value of money, consideration for the creidk associated with the principal balance in a gigecperiod and other
basic lending risks and considerations for costs,(Bquidity risk and operating costs) as wellpasfits.

When assessing whether contractual cash flows stosslely of principal and interest, the Companysiders the
contractual terms of the instrument. If a finaneisset contains a contractual condition that cheatigetiming or amount
of contractual cash flows, it should be determindgther the contractual cash flows that would aviger the life of the
instrument because of the contractual conditiorsisisolely of payment of principal and interest.

In evaluating this, the Company considers:
- Conditional circumstances that change the amoutiining of cash flows
- Provisions to adjust contractual nominal interagés including floating interest rate charactiss
- Early repayment characteristics and maturity msiten characteristics
- Contractual conditions limiting the Company'sirtido cash flows from specific assets (e.g., narooese)

If the early redemption amount substantially représ the outstanding principal and interest oveothtstanding principal
and includes reasonable compensation for earlyitetion of the contract, the early redemption cheemastic is consistent
with the conditions for paying the principal andeirest on a specific date.

In addition, for financial assets acquired at asigant discount or premium to the contractual mmahamount, the early
redemption amount substantially represents theractoal nominal value and contractual interestwdr(but not paid)

(in this case, it is necessary for early termimatibthe contract). If the fair value of the earglemption characteristic is
insignificant at the time of initial recognition affinancial asset, it is determined that thesalitioms are satisfied.



Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and qraigs

Financial assets These assets are subsequently measured at fai. Vdkt income including
measured at FVF interest or dividend income is recognized in profiloss
These assets are subsequently measured at amartzedising the effectiv
interest method. Amortized cost is reduced by impant loss. Interest incom
gain/loss on foreign currency translation and impant losses are recognized
profit or loss. Gains or losses on derecogniti@ratognized in profit or los
These assets are subsequently measured at fadr Wrstlerest income is calculated
using the effective interest method and gain o tosforeign currency translatia
and impairment losses are recognized in profit ams.| Other net income
recognized in other comprehensive income. Gainoss lon derecognition is
reclassified to profit or loss from accumulatedastbomprehensive incon
These assets are subsequently measured at fadr Elidends are recognized jn
Equity instruments | profit or loss unless there is an explicit recovefythe cost of the investment.
measured at FVOCI | Other net gains and losses are recognized in otdraprehensive income and are
never reclassified to prit or loss

Financial assets
measured at amortized
cost

D

n

5

Debt instruments
measured at FVOCI

(7]

@ Derecognition

The Company derecognizes a financial asset whecathigactual rights to the cash flows from the ficial asset expire,
or when the contractual rights to receive the déslis from the financial asset are transferred #red Company has
substantially transferred all the risks and rewarfd®wvnership of the transferred financial assetyleen the Company has
neither retained nor transferred substantiallyttal risks and rewards of ownership and has noinextacontrol of the
financial asset.

If the Company transfers assets recognized intdtersent of financial position but retains mosttef risks and rewards
of ownership of the transferred assets, the trarsfeassets are not derecognized.

@ Offset

The Company offsets financial assets and liabdlibaly when the Company currently has a legallypemable right of
set-off against the recognized assets and liadsilaind intends to settle the difference or sétddiabilities simultaneously
with the realization of the assets. and it is pmé=egk as a net amount in the statement of finapcisition.

(6) Derivative financial instruments

The Company holds derivative financial instrumeathedge its foreign exchange and interest ratesxpes. Embedded
derivatives are accounted for separately and stghfeom the main contract when the main contragtat a financial
asset and certain requirements are met.

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair valindtially. After initial recognition, it is measudeat fair value and changes
are generally recognized in profit or loss.

The Company designates certain derivatives anddeoivative financial liabilities as hedging instranis to hedge the
volatility of cash flows related to future forecastnsactions that are highly likely to arise fréioctuations in exchange
rates and interest rates.

At the inception of the hedge, the Company documéré objectives and strategies for risk manageffioerihe hedge.
The Company documents the economic relationshipvdmt the hedged item and the hedging instrumealydimg
whether changes in the cash flows of the hedgedated the hedging instrument are expected to céfseh other.

Hedges directly affected by interest rate benchmeifidem.

For the purpose of evaluating whether there is @amemic relationship between the hedged item(s) tardhedging
instrument(s), the Company assumes that the bemkhntarest rate is not altered as a result ofregerate benchmark
reform.

For a cash flow hedge of a forecast transactianCitbmpany assumes that the benchmark interestilateot be altered



as a result of interest rate benchmark reformHemurpose of assessing whether the forecast ttémrsés highly probable
and presents an exposure to variations in cashsftbet could ultimately affect profit or loss. Ietdrmining whether a
previously designated forecast transaction in aatisnued cash flow hedge is still expected to qcthe Company
assumes that the interest rate benchmark cash tesignated as a hedge will not be altered asudt i@fsinterest rate
benchmark reform. The Company will cease to appdydpecific policy for assessing the economic iaiahip between
the hedged item and the hedging instrument.

- to a hedged item or hedging instrument when tietainty arising from interest rate benchmarkmefis no longer
present with respect to the timing and the amofithieinterest rate benchmark-based cash flowkeoféspective item
or instrument or

- when the hedging relationship is discontinued.

For its highly probable assessment of the hedgad, ithe Company will no longer apply the specifidiqy when the
uncertainty arising from interest rate benchmafrra about the timing and the amount of the interate benchmark-
based future cash flows of the hedged item is ngdo present, or when the hedging relationshipsisotitinued.

(D Cash flow hedging

When a derivative is designated as a cash flowihgdgstrument, the effective portion of the changéhe fair value of
the derivative is recognized in other comprehensigeme and accumulated as hedging reserve. Teetig# part of the
change in the fair value of the derivatives recegdiin other comprehensive income is limited todhmulative change
in the fair value of the hedged item, determineskelbaon the present value, from the inception otige. Ineffective
parts of changes in the fair value of derivativesracognized immediately in profit or loss.

The Company designates only changes in the fairevaf the spot component of a forward exchanges#ietion as a
hedging instrument in a cash flow hedging relatimsChanges in the fair value of the forward comgrtt of a forward
exchange transaction are separately accounteddgsbecosts and recognized in the cost of hedgireguity.

If the hedged forecast transaction is subsequestiygnized in a non-financial asset such as inviegathe accumulated
hedge reserve and the cost of the hedging arediedldirectly in the initial cost of the non-finaakasset when the non-
financial asset is recognized.

For other hedged transactions, the accumulatedifgdgserves and the hedging cost are reclassiigdofit or loss in
the same period or in the period in which the hddggected future cash flows affect profit or loss.

Hedging accounting is discontinued prospectivelyemwlthe hedging no longer meets the criteria or whenhedging
instrument is sold, extinguished, terminated oreised.

If the non-financial item is a recognized hedgingnsaction, when cash flow hedge accounting isodtitued, the
accumulated hedge reserve and the cost of the figedgimains in equity items until the non-finandteim is initially
recognized and is included in the cost of the rinaritial item. In the case of a cash flow hedgé dioas not fall under
these circumstances, the amount is reclassifidéetdge reserve by reclassification adjustment dutiegperiod in which
the hedged future expected cash flows affect poofibss and the cost is reclassified as profibss.

When the hedged future cash flows are no longesearp to occur, the accumulated cash flow hedgewesnd the cost
of the hedge are immediately reclassified to pufitoss.

@ Net investment hedging

When a derivative or non-derivative financial ligtpiis designated as a hedging instrument for mimeestment in a
foreign operation, the effective part of the changthe fair value of the hedging instrument fadexivative instrument,
and the effective part of the gain or loss on fgmeturrency translation for a non-derivative instamt is recognized in
other comprehensive income and presented as ttarsagserve in equity. Ineffective parts are retipgd immediately
in profit or loss.

The amount recognized in other comprehensive indesmexlassified to profit or loss through recléisation adjustment
at the time of disposal of the foreign operatide.si



(7) Impairment of financial assets

D Financial instruments and contract assets

The Company recognizes allowance for expected tdesties on the following assets:
- financial assets measured at amortized cost

With the exception of the following financial assetvhich are measured in 12-month expected creskt the Company
measures the allowance for loss at an amount dguivi lifetime expected credit loss.

- Debtsecurities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

- Other debt securities and bank deposits for whreldit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurringesvthe expected life of
the financial instrument) has not increased sigaiftly since initial recognition.

The loss allowance for trade receivables and con@rssets is always measured at the amount equiivtal¢he lifetime
expected credit loss (ECL).

When determining whether the credit risk of a ficiahasset has increased significantly since inideognition and when
estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonaiulesapportable information that is relevant andilalke without
undue cost or effort. This includes both quantratnd qualitative information and analysis, basedhe Company’s
historical experience and informed credit assessamahincluding forward looking information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk of fir@rassets increases significantly when the numbewverdue days
exceeds 90 days.

The Company considers a financial asset to befauttavhen:

- the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligens to the Company in full, without recourse bg Company to actions
such as realizing security

- the number of overdue days of financial asseteeds 365 days
Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all pibte default events over the expected life ohariicial instrument.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that resutrf default events that are possible within theridhths after the
reporting date (or a shorter period if the expedifecof the instrument is less than 12 months).

The maximum period considered when estimating E€ltee maximum contractual period over which thengany is
exposed to credit risk.

@ Measurement of expected credit losses

ECLs are a probability weighted estimate of créalises. Credit losses are measured as the predeet of all cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the castv$l due to the entity in accordance with the camtaad the cash flows
that the Company expects to receive). ECLs arediged at the effective interest rate of the finalnasset.

(@ Credit-impaired financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Comparsgsses whether financial assets measured at apabctist and debt
instrument measured at fair value through othergretrensive income are credit-impaired. A finanesdet is deemed
credit-impaired when one or more events that hadetiamental impact on the estimated future caslivdlof the financial
asset have occurred.

Objective evidence that a financial asset or gmiuimancial assets are impaired includes:
- significant financial difficulty of the issuer dorrower
- a breach of contract such as a default or dedinqu more than 90 days

- concessions granted due to economic or contria@asons related to the borrower’s financial diffty that would not
otherwise be considered



- a high possibility that the borrower will entearikruptcy or other financial reorganization

- disappearance of an active market for the firedragsets due to financial difficulties
@ Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statemefifinancial position
Loss allowances for financial assets measured atteaed cost are deducted from the gross carryinguat of the assets.
® Write-off

A financial asset is written off when there is masonable expectation of recovery of all or paitotontractual cash
flows. For individual customers, the Company writdfsthe carrying amount based on past experierittethe recovery
of similar assets, and for corporate customerstitheng and amount of each write-off are evaluaitedividually by
assessing whether there is a reasonable expectatioecovery. The Company has no expectationttievrite-off will
be significantly recovered. However, financial asdbat are written off could still be subject tf@cement activities in
order to comply with the Company’s procedures é&mowvery of amounts due.

(8) Property, Plant and Equipment (PP&E)

Property, plant and equipment are initially meadwaad recognized at cost. The cost of propertyytpdad equipment
includes costs directly attributable to bringing #isset to the location and condition necessaspédoate it in the manner
intended by management and the estimated cosswfaditling, removing the assets or restoring tlee sit

After initial recognition, property, plant and epuient is carried at cost less accumulated depiagiand accumulated
impairment losses.

Among PP&E, land is not depreciated. Other propg@ignt and equipment are amortized using thegsttdine method,
which best reflects the expected consumption pettef future economic benefits inherent in the agger the useful life
as shown below for the amount obtained by dedudtiagesidual value from the acquisition cost ef éisset.

If the cost of a part of property, plant and equiipinis significant compared to the total cost & fioperty, plant and
equipment, such a part is separately depreciated.

Gain or loss on the derecognition of property, plmd equipment is determined as the differencevdzat the net sale
amount and the carrying amount, and the differémcecognized in profit or loss.

Estimated useful lives for the years ended DecerdbeP024 and 2023 are as follows.

Account Estimated useful life Account Estimated useful life

Building 20 ~ 40 years Facility and equipment large
Structures 20 ~ 40 years Vehicles 5 years
Machinery 8 ~ 12 years Others 5 years

At the end of each reporting period, the Compaeyaeines the residual value, useful life and deatien method of an
asset, and if it is judged appropriate to changs & result of the review, it is treated as a ghan accounting estimates.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only whengtobable that future economic benefits relateithé expenditure will
flow to the Company.

(9) Intangible assets

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost, after initial recognition, the carrying amousirécognized at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairriosses.

Intangible assets are amortized using the strdigétnethod over their useful lives of 5 years vétresidual value of zero
(“0" from the time they are available for use. Hower, as there are no foreseeable limits to thegeiover which club



memberships are expected to be available for biseintangible asset is determined as having agfimite useful life and
not amortized.

Amortization periods and the amortization methawsdritangible assets with finite useful lives aggiewed at the end of
each reporting period. Intangible assets are tleatechange in accounting change if is proper &mgé by reviewing
whether the evaluation that the useful lives o&igfible assets are indefinite and it is determitied the change is
reasonable.

Subsequent expenses are capitalized only wherutbheefeconomic benefits belonging to the specifiseh concerned
increase, and other expenses, including interrggdhyerated goodwill and brand names, are expenseédmtely upon
occurrence.

(10) Government grants

Government grants are recognized only when the @oampas reasonable assurance that it will recéigegtant and
comply with the conditions incidental to the grant.

The Company receives a government grant subjetttetdasic condition that it be used to acquireanstruct a non-
current asset. When calculating the carrying amotitite asset, the government grant is deductedesragynized in profit
or loss over the useful life of the depreciablestiss

(11) Investment property

Property held to earn rentals or for capital apjten or both is classified as investment propdrtyestment property is
measured initially at its cost. Transaction costsiacluded in the initial measurement. Subsequygintvestment property
is carried at depreciated cost less any accumuiatedirment losses.

Subsequent costs are recognized in the carryingiainad investment property at cost or, if approf@ias separate items
if it is probable that future economic benefitsazsated with the item will flow to the Company atiié: cost of the item
can be measured reliably. The carrying amountefdéplaced part is derecognized. The costs ofdgeatday servicing
are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

Among investment property, land is not depreciatad] investment property excluding land, is de@ated using the
straight-line method over 20 ~ 40 years dependimthe economic useful life.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residualieslare reviewed at the end of each reporting aladeadjusted, if
appropriate. The change is accounted for as a ehargn accounting estimate.

(12) Impairment of non-financial assets

All non-financial assets, except for assets arifinghn employee benefits, biological assets, invees) and deferred tax
assets, are reviewed at the end of each repomtingdfor any indications of impairment and, ifthés any such indication,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimatedekrer, goodwill and intangible assets that hadefinite useful lives
or that are not yet available for use, irrespeatifirehether there is any indication of impairmeart tested for impairment
annually by comparing their recoverable amounh#rtcarrying amount.

Management estimates the recoverable amount ohdimidual asset. If it is impossible to measure théividual
recoverable amount of an asset, then manageméantéss the recoverable amount of cash-generating“@GU"). The
recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greéits value-in-use and its fair value less castsell. The value-in-
use is estimated by applying a pre-tax discoumt ttat reflects current market assessments ofrtieevtalue of money
and the risks specific to the asset or CGU for Wihastimated future cash flows have not been adjustethe estimated
future cash flows expected to be generated bysbetar CGU.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carryingoamt of an asset or a CGU exceeds its recoveraibeiat. Impairment
losses are recognized in profit or loss.



(13) Leases

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contcaetveys the right to control the use of an idédifasset for a period of
time in exchange for considerations.

@ As alessee

At inception or reassessment of a contract thatatem a lease component, the Company allocatesotisderation in the
contract to each lease and non-lease componetiedpasis of their relative stand-alone prices. Harnethe Company
accounts for the non-lease component related te#se component as a single lease component lyiregpthe practical
expedient that does not separate the non-leasear@npfor real estate leases.

The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset aadse lliability at the lease commencement daterigheof-use asset
is initially measured at cost, which comprisesittiial amount of the lease liability adjusted oty lease payments made
at or before the commencement date, plus anyliditiact costs incurred and an estimate of costésimantle and remove
the underlying asset of to restore the underlysggtor the site on which it is located.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciatea straight-line basis from the commencement atke end of the
lease term, unless the lease transfers ownershiyeafderlying asset to the Company by the entleofease term or the
cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that then@any will exercise a purchase option. In that ¢heeaight-of-use asset
will be depreciated over the useful life of the arlging asset, which is determined on the sameskassthat of property
and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use assgteriodically reduced by impairment losses, if,aand adjusted for
certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at thegent value of the lease payments that are notgpdite commencement
date, discounted using the interest rate implitithie lease or, if that rate cannot be readilyrdgteed the Company’s
incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Compasss its incremental borrowing rate as the discratet

The Company determines its incremental borrowintg by obtaining interest rates from various exteswarces and
makes certain adjustments to reflect the termbefdase and type of the asset leased.

Lease payments included in the measurement oétse lliability comprise the followings:
- fixed payments (including the fixed lease paymgnt

- variable lease payments that depend on an indaxate, which is measured the index or rater@steate) of the lease
commencement date initially

- amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

- exercise price under a purchase option that tregany is reasonably certain to exercise, leasmeats in an optional
renewal period if the Company is reasonably cettaiexercise an extension option, and penaltiesddly termination
of a lease unless the Company is reasonably certaito terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortized cestgithe effective interest method. A lease lityils a change in the
future lease payments due to a change in an indext® (interest rate) and remeasured in the eveatchange in the
amount expected to be paid under the residual walaeantee, a change in the evaluation of whethexéercise purchase,
extension or termination options, or a change énattual fixed lease payment.

When the lease liability is remeasured, the relatga-of-use asset is adjusted. Of the carryingamh of the right-of-use
asset decreases to zero (“0"), the remeasurementraris recognized in profit or loss.

In the statement of financial position, right-okeusssets that do not meet the definition of investrproperty are presented
separately from tangible assets, and lease ligsilire presented as ‘other financial liabilities'.

Short-term leases and small-value underlying deasts

The Company has elected not to recognize rightsefassets and lease liabilities for leases of lalwevassets and short-
term leases not exceeding 12 months, includingddipment. The Company recognizes the lease payrmasstxiated
with these leases as an expense on a straightdisie over the lease term.

@ As alessor



At inception or the effective date of a modificatidhat contains a lease component, the Companyatdls the
consideration in the contract to each lease comganethe basis of their relative stand-alone price

As a lessor, the Company determines at lease iocewhether each lease is a finance lease or aatimg lease.

To classify each lease, the Company makes an bwemsdssment of whether the lease transfers stibfiiaall of the
risks and rewardmcidental to ownership of the underlying asset. If this is the case, then the lease is a finance lease; if not,
then it is an operating lease. As part of this sssent, the Company considers certain indicatais asi whether the lease
is for the major part of the economic life of trsset.

When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it@msofor its interests in the head lease and thdesase separately. It
assesses the lease classification of a sub-lediseeférence to the right-of-use asset arising ftoenhead lease, not with
reference to the underlying asset. If a head lisassehort-term lease to which the Company apiiesxemption described
above, then it classifies the sub-lease as an tipgtaase.

If an arrangement contains lease and non-leaseawenps, then the Company applies K-IFRS No. 111&ltzate the
consideration in the contract.

The Company applies the derecognition and impaitmeguirements in K-IFRS No. 1109 to the net inrestt in the
lease. The Company further regularly reviews egthainguaranteed residual values used in calcglatie gross
investment of the lease.

The Company recognizes lease payments received apdeating leases as income on a straight-lines loaer the lease
term.

(14) Non-derivative financial liabilities

The Company classifies non-derivative financiabiliies into financial liabilities measured atfaialue through profit or
loss or financial liabilities measured at amortizedt in accordance with the substance of the aontal arrangement and
the definitions of financial liabilities and recages financial liabilities in the statement of fir@al position when the
Company becomes a party to the contractual prangsid the financial liability.

(D Financial liabilities measured at fair value thghuprofit or loss

A financial liability is classified as at fair vaduthrough profit or loss if it is classified as diébr-trading, it is a derivative
or it is designated as such on initial recogniti®absequent to initial recognition, financial ligi®s at fair value through
profit or loss are measured at fair value, and ghartherein are recognized in profit or loss. Uputial recognition,
transaction costs that are directly attributabléhtoacquisition are recognized in profit or lossrecurred.

(@ Other financial liabilities

Non-derivative financial liabilities other than &incial liabilities measured at fair value throughbfi or loss are classified
as financial liabilities measured at amortized céstthe date of initial recognition, financial tidities measured at
amortized cost are measured at fair value aftenated) transaction costs that are directly attdbig to the acquisition.
Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost areasured at amortized cost using the effectiterdat method
subsequently to initial recognition.

(@ Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes a financial liability wiitsncontractual obligations are discharged or elied or expired.
The Company also derecognizes a financial liabiityen its terms are modified and the cash flowth@Mmodified liability
are substantially different, in which case a newvafiicial liability based on the modified terms isagnized at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difence between the carrying amount extinguishedtadonsideration
paid (including any non-cash assets transferrdidloilities assumed) is recognized in profit ordos



(15) Employee benefits
@ Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee bertbhtsare due to be settled within 12 months afterend of the period
in which the employees render the related ser¥ideen an employee has rendered service to the Conthaing an
accounting period, the Company recognizes the aadited amount of short-term employee benefits erpeo be paid
in exchange for that service as profit or loss.

@ Other long-term employee benefits

Other long-term employee benefits include empldyseefits that are settled beyond 12 months afteetid of the period
in which the employees render the related serdind,are calculated at the present value of the anwidfuture benefit
that employees have earned in return for theirisenwn the current and prior periods, less the ¥aiue of any related
assets. Any actuarial gains and losses are reajimzprofit or loss in the period in which theysat

@ Retirement benefit: Defined benefit plan

For defined contribution plans, when an employe® femdered service to the Company during a petiw Company
recognizes the contribution payable to a definedrdaution plan in exchange for that service asegrued expense, after
deducting any contributions already paid. If thatdbutions already paid exceed the contributioa thr service before
the end of the reporting period, the Company reizegnthat excess as an asset (prepaid expends) axtent that the
prepayment will lead to a reduction in future pawptseor a cash refund.

@ Retirement benefits: Defined benefit plans

As of the end of the reporting period, defined ligtiabilities related to defined benefit plangaecognized by deducting
the fair value of plan assets from the presentevafithe defined benefit obligations.

The calculation is performed annually by an indejeen actuary using the projected unit credit methtien the fair
value of plan assets exceeds the present valle afdfined benefit obligation, the Company recoggian asset, to the
extent of the present value of the total of cunmivaany economic benefits available in the formedtinds from the plan
or reduction in the future contributions to therpla

Remeasurements of net defined benefit liabilitiesich comprise actuarial gains and losses, thenmatn plan assets
(excluding interest) and the effect of the asséinge(if any, excluding interest), are recognizimediately in other
comprehensive income. The Company determines thantegest expense (income) on the net defined flidiability
(asset) for the period by applying the discours tated to measure the defined benefit obligatidheabeginning of the
annual period to the then-net defined benefit ligb{asset), taking into account any changes anrbt defined benefit
liability (asset) during the period as a resulcontributions and benefit payments, net interepease and other expenses
related to defined benefit plans are recognizqurddit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or whelaraip curtailed, the resulting change in benéfit trelates to past
service or the gain or loss in curtailment is ragpgd immediately in profit or loss. The Compangagnizes gains and
losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plaen the settlement occurs.

(16) Greenhouse Gases Emission Right

The Company has been accounted for the greenhasss gmission right and emission liability occgursuant to the
Act on Allocation and Transaction of Greenhouse Bassion Right, as follows.

@ Emission rights

Greenhouse gas emissions rights consist of thevatioes received free of charge from the governraadtthe ones
purchased. the allowances received free of chaoge the government is measured and recognizedrag'z8) and the
cost of the greenhouse gas emissions rights inslegeenditures arising directly from the acquisitamd any other costs
incurred during normal course of the acquisition.

Greenhouse gas emissions rights are held by thep@woyrto fulfill the legal obligation and recordesliatangible assets.



To the extent that the portion to be submittedhi government within one year from the end of répgrperiod, the
greenhouse gas emissions rights are classifiedirasnt assets. Greenhouse gas emissions rightsleztas intangible
assets are initially measured at cost and subatiynttmeasured at cost less accumulated impairfosses.

Emission rights held for the purpose of performiing obligation are classified as intangible asadtiaitially measured
at cost and subsequently carried at cost less adated impairment losses.

The Company derecognizes an emission right assen wte emission allowance is unusable, disposesdilmmitted to
government when the future economic benefits aremger expected to be probable.

@ Emission liability

Emission liability is an amount of estimated obtigas for emission rights to be submitted to theegoment for the
performing period. The emission liability is measaibased on the expected quantity of emissiomhéopérforming period
in excess of emission allowance in possession laadiit price for such emission rights in the magkethe end of the
reporting period. The emission liability is derenpd when submitted to the government.

(17) Foreign currency

Foreign currency transactions are initially recardsing the spot exchange rate between the furadtoanmrency and the
foreign currency at the date of the transactionth&tend of each reporting period, foreign curremonetary items are
translated using the closing rate. Non-monetamstthat are measured in terms of historical coatforeign currency are
translated using the exchange rate at the dateeafrtginal transaction. Non-monetary items thatraeasured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the arghk rate at the date fair value was initially dateed.

All exchange differences arising from the convargid monetary items are recognized in profit os]asxcluding foreign
exchange differences at the time of settlementafetary items, differences in the translation afimeestments in foreign
operations, or differences in financial liabilitidesignated as cash flow hedges. When gains cgdass non-monetary
items are recognized in other comprehensive incemehange components of those gains or losses@ygnized in other
comprehensive income. Conversely, when gains seben non-monetary items are recognized in pofiss, exchange
components of those gains or losses are recogimizawfit or loss.

(18) Paid-in capital

Common shares are classified as equity, and inareineosts directly related to capital transactians deducted from
equity at a net amount reflecting tax effects.

When the Company reacquires treasury equity ingnisy these equity instruments are directly deduitten equity as
treasury stock. No gain or loss is recognized ofipor loss on the purchase, sale, issuance, meatiation of treasury
equity instruments. When the Company acquires ahdistireasury stock, consideration paid or receigeckcognized
directly in equity.



(19) Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideratioriggrim the contract with the customer. The Compatpgnizes
revenue when control of a good or service transteascustomer. The characteristics and timingeofggmance obligations
in contracts with customers, significant paymeninteand related revenue recognition policies arfelisvs:

Characteristics of goods or services, timing
Goods/Service performance obligations, and significant Revenue recognition policy
payment terrr

Revenue was recognized when the pro
transfers to the customer and control transfe
Control of fresh meat and processed n ) . .

 the customer. Discountsich as sales incentiv

products are transferred when they are stoeked

Chicken meat |5. . "~ . "are deducted from revenue because they d
distribution stores and agencies, and when

products ; correspond to the transaction price in reveny
are sold (chicks, feed, etc.) to customers, an ; ' -
) : . the extent that there is a very high probabiligt
recognized as revenue at this point. i |
a significant return will not occur to th
accumulated revent
For IT computer maintenance service, the set
C(_Jmputer IS pr_owded dunng_the.coptrlact period, and Revenue was recognized over gegiod in which
maintenance |service charge tax invoice is issued and proce : .
. ._the services are provided.
service on the last day of each month and recognize

revenue

Meanwhile, the Company supplies feed, chicks andtetspecific farms at cost (hereinafter refert@ds “Customer-
supplies at cost”), purchases additionally proagssstomer-supplies, etc. from these farms and #&dim to the outside
after additional processing of the Company. Sidtwe ¢ustomer-supplies at cost supplied to spec#fimé$ are still

controlled by the Company through contracts, threyracognized as assets of the Company and atedras payment of
fees when importing processed customer-supplies fach farms.

(20) Finance income and finance costs
The Company’s finance income and finance costsidel

- interest income;

- interest expense;

- net income or loss on financial assets measuriiravalue through profit or loss

- gain or loss on foreign currency translation imaficial assets and financial liabilities
Interest income or expense is recognized usingffieetive interest method.

The effective interest method is an interest ratg aiccurately matches the present value of futash payments or
receivables, estimated over the expected lifefofancial instrument, with the total carrying amoohfinancial assets or
amortized cost of financial liabilities.

When calculating interest income or interest expetige effective interest rate is applied to thaltoarrying amount of

the asset (if the asset is not impaired) or thertimeal cost of the liability. However, for finantiassets with subsequent
impairment after initial recognition, interest imoe is calculated by applying the effective interagé to the amortized

cost of the financial assets. If the asset is ngéo considered to be impaired, interest inconsalisulated by applying the
effective interest rate to its gross carrying antoun

(21) Borrowing costs

The Company capitalizes borrowing costs directiytattable to the acquisition, construction or protion of a qualifying
asset as part of the cost of that asset. Otheoworg costs are recognized in expense as incuirgdalifying asset is an
asset that requires a substantial period of tingetaeady for its intended use or sale. Finarasgakts and inventories that
are manufactured or otherwise produced over a gleoidd of time are not qualifying assets. Asdeds are ready for their



intended use or sale when acquired are not quadjfgssets.

To the extent that the Company borrows funds sigadlif for the purpose of obtaining a qualifyingses the Company
determines the amount of borrowing costs eligilde dapitalization as the actual borrowing costsuired on that

borrowing during the period less any investmenbime on the temporary investment of those borrowifige Company
immediately recognizes other borrowing costs asxgense. To the extent that the Company borrowdsfgenerally and
uses them for the purpose of obtaining a qualifyasget, the Company shall determine the amounbwbWwing costs

eligible for capitalization by applying a capitation rate to the expenditures on that asset. &p#adization rate shall be
the weighted average of the borrowing costs apipléce the borrowings of the Company that are anting during the
period, other than borrowings made specificallytfar purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset. Tinewunt of borrowing

costs that the Company capitalizes during a pestal not exceed the amount of borrowing costsriecliduring that

period.

(22) Income taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and defearedCurrent tax and deferred tax are recognizeudafit or loss except
to the extent that it relates to a business contibimaor items recognized directly in equity ordther comprehensive
income.

D Current income tax

Current income tax is the expected income tax payabreceivable on the taxable profit or losstfoe year, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the fetiek deporting period and any adjustment to tayapde in respect of
previous years. The taxable profit is differentnfrthe accounting profit for the period since thatae profit is calculated
excluding the temporary differences, which will tagable or deductible in determining taxable profifuture periods,
and non-taxable or non-deductible items from theanting profit.

The Company offsets current tax assets and cuagriabilities if, and only if, the Company:

- has a legally enforceable right to set off theogmized amounts, and

- intends either to settle on a net basis, or atize the asset and settle the liability simultarsbyp
@ Deferred income tax

The measurement of deferred income tax liabiliiesd deferred tax assets reflects the tax consegseinat would follow
from the manner in which the Company expects,atetid of the reporting period, to recover or séiidecarrying amount
of its assets and liabilities. The Company recogmia deferred income tax liability for all taxatéenporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, aatg;iand joint ventures, except to the extentttiea€Company is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the tempordifference and it is probable that the temporaffeence will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. The Companygrezes a deferred income tax asset for deducebhporary differences
arising from investments in subsidiaries, assosiated joint ventures, to the extent that it is piwb that the temporary
difference will reverse in the foreseeable futurd taxable profit will be available against whitle temporary difference
can be utilized.

A deferred income tax asset is recognized for #reyforward of unused tax losses, tax credits adldtible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable thaire taxable profit will be available against wiithe unused tax losses,
tax credits and deductible temporary differences loa utilized. The future taxable profit dependsreversing taxable
temporary differences. When there are insufficiexxiable temporary differences to recognize the rdefletax assets
completely, the probability of reversing tempordifferences and the business plans of subsidiavisn the Company
are considered in the future taxable income.

Temporary differences relating to right-of-use &ssnd lease liabilities are considered as a sitiglesaction for the
purposes of recognizing deferred tax.

The carrying amount of a deferred income tax assetviewed at the end of each reporting periodiarmdduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that suffitiexxable profit will be available to allow the hedit of part or all of that
deferred income tax asset to be utilized.



Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are nreaisat the tax rates that are expected to applyetperiod when the
asset is realized or the liability is settled, luiasa tax laws that have been enacted or substgntwacted by the end of
the reporting period. When measuring deferred iretemx assets and deferred income tax liabilitiespine tax effects

are reflected according to the method in which@benpany expects to recover or settle the carryinguats of the related
assets and liabilities as of the end of the reponpieriod. Deferred income tax assets and liadslifire offset only if there
is a legally enforceable right to offset the refateirrent income tax liabilities and assets, amy tlelate to income taxes
levied by the same tax authority and they intenddtile current income tax liabilities and assetsaoet basis. Any
additional income tax expenses incurred as a reétiite payment of dividends are recognized whaillties related to

the payment of dividends are recognized.

(23) Earnings per share

The Company calculates basic earnings per sha@aion shares in terms of profit or loss and pitsseim the statement
of comprehensive income. Basic earnings per sharealculated by dividing the profit or loss attriable to common
shares by the weighted average number of commaoasissued and outstanding during the reportingpger

(24) Operating segment

The Company classifies segments based on inteepakting data that is periodically reviewed by theef operating
decision maker to make decisions on resources tallbeated to the segments and evaluate their pagioces. As
described in Note 6, there are 3 reporting segmeath of which is a strategic unit of the Comp&tsategic units provide
different products and services and are operatearately because the technology and marketingegiiest required for
each business unit are different.

Segment information reported to CEO includes iteimsctly attributable to the division and itemsttban be reasonably
allocated. The unallocated items are mainly commssets such as the headquarters building, expesisgsd to the
headquarters, and corporate tax assets and carpaxrdiabilities.



3. Significant Accounting Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of financial statements requirssi@ptions and estimates about the future, and reamaqt is required
to make judgments in applying the accounting peticof the Company. Estimates and assumptions atégously
evaluated, taking into account reasonably forededature events, based on past experience arcuithent situation. The
results of accounting estimates are rarely idehticactual results, thus carrying significant sgkat may lead to material
adjustments.

Management's judgments and estimates of signifidaks that may affect the adjustments to the @agramounts of
assets and liabilities in the next fiscal yearasdollows. Additional information on significaniggments and estimates
for some items is included in the individual notes.

(1) Recoverable Amount of Cash-generating Units

The recoverable amount of cash-generating unit&ghk used to assess whether impairment existletesrmined based
on the calculation of their value in use.

(2) Realizability of Deferred Tax Assets

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is vedeat each reporting period end, and the carrgingunt of deferred
tax assets is reduced if it is no longer probale sufficient taxable income will be generateditow all or part of the
deferred tax assets to be recovered.

(3) Fair Value of Biological Assets

The fair value of biological assets that are redéd in an active market is primarily determineidgisaluation techniques.
The Company makes judgments on the selection atedndi@ation of various valuation techniques basedignificant
market conditions as of the end of the reportingoge



4. Financial Risk Management
4.1 Components of Financial Risk Management

In relation to financial instruments, the Compasigxposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and mankek. This note discloses
information on the above risks to which the Compasngxposed, as well as the Company's risk managenhgectives,
policies, and risk assessment and management pnesed\dditional quantitative information is disséml throughout the
financial statements.

(1) Risk Management System

The Board of Directors is responsible for estalighand supervising the risk management systerheofCompany and
carries out implementation activities such as distaibg risk management policies and identifyingaleating and
managing risks from the enterprise-level perspectiv

The Company's risk management policy has beenlissiath to identify and analyze the risks the Comypfaces, to set
appropriate risk thresholds and controls, and évemt risks from exceeding the thresholds. Riskagament policies and
systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changesarket conditions and the Company's activitigee Tompany aims
at establishing a strict and structured controliremment in which all employees can understandrtheies and

responsibilities through training and managemaardsards and procedures.

The Company's audit committee supervises how mamagiemanages compliance with the Company's riskagement
policies and procedures, and reviews whether thegaay's risk management system is appropriatenitaudit assists
the audit committee's supervisory function, conslugigular and special reviews on risk managementras and

procedures, and reports the results to the auditratiee.

(2) Credit Risk

“Credit Risk” refers to the risk that the Companiyll wuffer financial loss due to failure of perfoimg contractual
obligations by customers or counterparties to fom@ninstruments. It mainly arises from debt setesi and trade
receivables payable by customers.

(D Trade receivables

The Company's exposure to credit risk is mainhe@#d by the characteristics of each customer.thmitcustomer
distribution, such as bankruptcy risk in the indysind country in which the customer operates|/ds eonsidered as a
factor affecting credit risk. As the Company’s egpre is dispersed among multiple customers, crasglt is not
concentrated.

Many of the Company's customers have the continbosgess relationships, so losses do not occquémly. When

reviewing credit risk for customers, the Comparasslfies them according to characteristics suathasher the customer
is an individual or a corporation, whether the oostr is a wholesaler, retailer, or consumer, credid previous financial
difficulties. Most of the trade receivables arisenfi the Company's wholesale customers. Customassified as “high

risk” are included in the restricted customer fist management, and future sales are possible whin paying the

operation security deposit or paying an advancengay.

The Company has established an allowance for lasqescted to occur on trade receivables. This alfme consists of
the specific impairment losses on individually sfigant items and an impairment loss that has aring has not yet been
identified on a group of financial assets with $&ncharacteristics. Allowance for a group of fineh assets is determined
based on historical data on the recovery of sinfiil@ancial assets.

2 Debt securities
The Company limits exposure to credit risk by iriregsonly in regional development bonds and natitveaising bonds.
@ Guarantee

It is the policy of the Company to provide guarast@nly to related parties or business partners weleal support for
business. As of December 31, 2024, the guarantee&ipd by the Company are described in Note 23.



(3) Liquidity risk

“Liquidity Risk” refers to the risk that the Compawill have difficulties in meeting its obligationglated to financial
liabilities. The Company's liquidity management haet is to maintain sufficient liquidity to pay off liabilities at
maturity without the risk of incurring unacceptatidesses or damaging the Company's reputation avdimancially
difficult circumstances.

The Company has sufficient demand deposits to ctheerexpected operating costs, including repayroérinancial
liabilities, and credit limits at financial insttions with high credit ratings. This does not ird#upotential effects due to
extreme conditions that cannot be reasonably ferese

(4) Market risk

“Market Risk” refers to the risk that the fair valwf financial instruments or future cash flowsliilictuate due to
fluctuations in market prices such as exchangesrateerest rates, and price of equity securifié® objective of market
price management is to manage and control mareexiposure within acceptable limits while optimigireturns.

@ Currency risk

The Company is exposed to foreign exchange riskabes, purchases and borrowings denominated ierwies other
than the functional currency of the Company. Thmary currency in which these transactions aregimesl is USD.

@ Interest rate risk

The Company manages interest rate risk by perithgdiceviewing interest rate fluctuations and repayor refinancing
related liabilities to manage interest rate risk.

(5) Capital Management

The Company's capital management policy is to raairgound capital for the trust of investors, di@di, and the market
and the future development of the business. Thepaomstrives to maintain a balance between sowaadial positions.
The Company's capital structure consists of ecquity net liabilities after deducting cash and caglivalents and short-
and long-term financial instruments from borrowingibe details of capital management as of Decer@bef024 and
2023 are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)
ltem Dec 31, 2024 Dec 31, 2023

Total borrowings 419,493,176 404,871,208
Less:

Cash and cash equivalents 36,303,343 40,503,091
Short-term financial instruments 10,000,000 23,170,00(
Long-term financial instruments 22,512,169 14,241,058
Adjusted borrowings 350,677,664 326,957,059
Equity 275,682,682 300,693,317
Adjusted debt ratio 127.20% 108.73%




4.2 Foreign Currency Risk
(1) Exposure to Foreign Currency Risk

The Company's exposure to foreign currency risafddecember 31, 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

(Unit: USD, JPY, KRW 1,000)
Dec 31, 2024 Dec 31, 2023
Account . KRW . KRW
Foreign currency . Foreign currency .
equivalen equivalen
_ USD 23,838 35,042 ysp 819,634 1,056,834
Cash and cash equivalents == 0™ 95 2 36¢ 180,084 jpy | 50,710,62( 462,816
Total foreign currency assets 215,130 1,519,652
Short-term borrowings usD 87,240,624 128,243,717 UsD 91,560,655 118,058,309
Total foreign currency liabilities 128,243,717 118,058,309

(2) Sensitivity Analysis

The Company internally measures the foreign exchaigk of exchange rate fluctuations on a reguksid When
assuming that all other variables are constanf 8e2cember 31, 2024 and 2023, the results of seitgianalysis on the
effects of potential fluctuations in exchange rateshe Company's pre-tax net income and equitye@geasonable extent
are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)

Dec 31, 2024 Dec 31, 2023
Currency | FX rate change
Up Down Up Down
uUsD 10% (12,820,867) 12,820,867 (11,700,147 11,700,147
JPY 10% 18,009 (18,009 46,282, (46,282
Total (12,802,858) (12,802,858 (11,653,865 11,653,864




4.3 Interest Rate Risk

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk beciimss floating interest rate financial liabdi

(1) The carrying amounts of floating interest riwancial liabilities held by the Company as of Bewer 31, 2024 and
2023, are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)

Item Dec 31,2024 | Dec 31, 2023
Floating interest rate financial liabilities:
Short-term borrowings 246,493,717 227,808,309
Long-term borrowings 67,500,00( 45,750,00(
Total 313,993,717 273,558,309

(2) Cash flow sensitivity analysis of floating irgst rate financial liabilities

If the interest rate would have changed by 100shaaints, the Company's equity and profit or Idssusd have increased
or decreased at the end of the reporting periodrdowly. Assuming that other variables such asherge rates do not
change, the specific amounts of changes in caguit@lprofit or loss are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)
Dec 31, 2024 Dec 31, 2023
ltem Profit or loss Capital Profit or loss Capital
100bp 100bp 100bp 100bp
100bp Up Down 100bp Up Down 100bp Up Down 100bp Up Down
Short-term 4 i § y
borrowing: | (2464:937) 2464,937 (2464,937) 2,464,937 (2,278,083) 2,278,083 (2,278,083) 2,278,083
tong't‘?rm (675,000) 675,000 (675,000 675,000 (457,500) 457,500 (457,500) 457,500
orrowings
Total (3,139,937) 3,139,937 (3,139,937) 3,139,937 (2,735,583) 2,735,583 (2,735,583) 2,735,583




4.4 Credit Risk
(1) Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of a financial asset represetsnaximum exposure to credit risk. The maximuposure to credit
risk of the Company as of December 31, 2024 an@282s follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)

ltem Dec 31, 2024 Dec 31, 2023
Cash and cash equivalents 36,303,343 40,503,091
Short-term financial instruments 10,000,00( 23,170,00(
Long-term financial instruments 22,512,169 14,241,058
Trade and other receivables 87,647,216 85,822,667
Long-term trade and other receivables 8,689,807 7,066,839
Other financial assets - 471,310

Total 165,152,535 171,274,965

As of December 31, 2024, the maximum exposure eédicrisk of financial guarantees provided by thenany is
KRW4,853,100,000 (Note 23).

On the other hand, since the Company maintainsiargideposits in financial institutions with exesit credit ratings, it
is expected that the credit risk from financialitgions is not high.

(2) Impairment loss

The ages of trade receivables and other receivakle$ December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the amofiaigected credit
loss for receivables by age are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)
Dec 31, 2024 Dec 31, 2023
ltem Total Impaired Carrying Total Impaired Carrying
receivable receivable amoun receivable receivable amoun

0-3 months 86,570,742 54,914 86,515,828 84,555,364 74,566 84,480,799
4-6 months 1,060,835 70,045 990,790 1,384,154 70,549 1,313,60¢
7-9 months 178,955 41,690 137,265 30,921 7,620 23,301
10-12 months 10,394 7,059 3,335 34,894 29,934 4,960
Over 12 monthg 10,082,907 1,393,100 8,689,807 8,000,994 934,160 7,066,838

Total 97,903,838 1,566,808 96,337,024 94,006,336 1,116,829 92,889,507




4.5 Liquidity Risk

The Company maintains an appropriate level of undraorrowing facilities (refer to Note 23.2) anchetantly monitors
liquidity forecasts to meet operating cash flow deas without violating borrowing limits or covenant

The Company has entered into supplier finance genaents with various financial institutions, witarying terms
depending on the financial institution. These ageaments have improved the Company's working cafita financial
institutions with which the Company has suppligrafice arrangements maintain sound financial positiand the
Company has no significant concentration of ligtyidisk with respect to these financial institutiofNote 18.2).

The management monitors cash and cash equivaledtsarowing facility covenants based on estima&egected cash
flows. These estimations are managed regionallgamh company according to practices and limitbgehe Company.
These limits are set differently considering tlogiidity conditions of the regional markets in whiadich company operates.
In addition, the Company's liquidity risk-relatedligies consider the status of liquid assets totresgémated cash flow
needs by major currency and manage the liquidiig k@ the statement of financial position to miet requirements of
internal and external supervisory bodies and te@besfunding plans.



Contractual maturities of financial liabilities asDecember 31, 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

@ Dec 31, 2024

(In thousands of Korean won)

ltem Carrying Contractual Within 3 3 months 1-2 years | Over 2 years
amoun cash flov month ~1yea
Trade and other 103,276,256 103,276,255 94,698,702 8,577,553 - -
payable
Shor-term borrowing 405,413,17| 412,000,08| 104,975,00f 307,025,08 - -
Long-term rade and | 464 357 1 464,357 : : 445000 1,019,357
other payables
Long-term borrowing 14,080,00 15,259,46 128,89 393,85: 10,584,04 4,152,67
Other financial 609,130 609,130 609,130 : . .
liabilities
Lease liabilitie 3,886,15! 4,282,45 755,63: 1,704,63. 936,97 885,21
Total 528,729,07| 536,891,75| 201,167,36| 317,701,11 11,966,01 6,057,24

Meanwhile, in addition to the above other finantighilities and long-term other financial liabiéis, the maximum amount
of guarantees the Company can assume under theihguarantee contracts provided by the Compargf ®ecember
31, 2024 is KRW4,853,100,000.

@ Dec 31, 2023

(In thousands of Korean won)

Carrying Contractual Within 3 3 months
Item 1-2 years | Over 2 years
amoun cash flov month: ~1yea
Trade and other 108,324,267 108,324,268 97,796,121 10,528,147 - -
payable
Shor-termborrowings 313,832,30| 320,083,10 46,335,561 | 273,747,59 - -
Long-term trade and 921,695 921,695 . . 255,000 666,695
other payables
Long-term borrowing 91,038,90 94,372,24 371,99( 1,124,14 80,480,85 12,395,24
Lease liabilitie 3,771,30 4,033,44 663,82 1,534,48 884,97 950,16:
Total 517,888,48| 527,734,75| 145,167,44| 286,934,37 81,620,83 14,012,10

The management of the Company believes that fiaatiabilities can be repaid by cash flows from @img activities
and cash inflows from financial assets. Meanwhhie,Company enters into a credit limit contractwifie major bank to
manage liquidity risks that may arise temporarily.



5. Fair Value

5.1 Carrying Amount and Fair Value of Financial Ingruments by Category

(1) The carrying amounts and fair values of finahgistruments as of December 31, 2024 and 202%xsfollows

(In thousands of Korean won)
Dec 31, 2024 Dec 31, 2023
tem Carrying amount Fair value Carrying amount Fair value
Financial assets:
Financial assets recognized at amortized cost
Cash and cash equivalents 36,303,343 36,303,343 40,503,091 40,503,091
Short-term financial instruments 10,000,000 10,000,00( 23,170,00( 23,170,00(¢
Long-term financial instruments 22,512,169 22,512,169 14,241,054 14,241,058
Trade and other receivables (*) 87,647,218 87,647,218 85,822,664 85,822,664
Long-term trade and other receivable 8,689,807 8,689,807 7,066,839 7,066,834
Other financial assets - - 2,110 2,110
Financial assets measured at fair value
Derivatives assets - - 469,200 469,200
Total financial assets 165,152,537 165,152,537 171,274,966 171,274,966

Financial Liabilities:
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Trade and other payables (*) 103,276,256 103,276,256 108,324,261 108,324,267
Long-term trade and other payables 1,464{357 1,464,357 921,695 921,695
Short-term borrowings 405,413,176 405,413,176 313,832,304 313,832,309
Long-term borrowings 14,080,000 14,080,00( 91,038,90( 91,038,90(
Financial liabilities measured at fair value
Derivatives liabilities 609,130 609,130 - -

Total financial liabilities 524,842,919 524,842,919 514,117,17] 514,117,171

(*) The Company estimates that the carrying amowftshe aforementioned financial instruments arse@sonable

approximation of their fair values.



5.2 Fair Value Hierarchy

Fair values are categorized into the following leve

Category Significance of input variables

Level 1 Quoted price in an active market for idealtiassets or liabilities

Level 2 Directly or indirectly observable inputsdn asset or liability

Level 3 Inputs to assets or liabilities that aré lmesed on observable market data

The fair value measurement by fair value levelgach type of financial instrument measured atMaliue as of December

31, 2024 and 2023, is as follows:
1) Dec 31, 2024

(In thousands of Korean won)
Item ‘ Level 1 ‘ Level 2 | Level 3 ‘ Total
Financial assets
Derivatives assets ‘ - ‘ 609,13d - ‘ 609,130
2) Dec. 31, 2023
(In thousands of Korean wop)
Iltem ‘ Level 1 ‘ Level 2 | Level 3 ‘ Total
Financial assets
Derivatives assets ‘ - ‘ 469,ZOd - ‘ 469,200

3) Descriptions on valuation method and inputs @fel 2 of the fair value hierarchy

Valuation technics and inputs of assets/liabilitkssified as Level 2 of the fair value hierarelnyong assets and liabilities
measured at fair values as of December 31, 2022028 are as follows:

n)

(In thousands of Korean wo
Iltem Dec 31, 2024 Dec 31, 2023 | Valuation method Inputs
Financial assets
Derivatives assets - 469,200 Market approach :((: rate, remaining maturity,
Financial liabilities
Derivatives liabilities 609,130 -| Market approach :((: rate, remaining maturity,




6. Financial Instrument Category

6.1 Classification of Financial Instruments by Catgory

Carrying amounts of financial instruments by catgges of December 31, 2024 and 2023, are as follows

@ Dec 31, 2024

(In thousands of Korean wo
Financial assets| Financial liabilities| Financial assets | Financial liabilities
Item measured at measured at measured at fair | measured at fair

amortized co: amortized co: value value
Cash and cash equivalents 36,303/343 - - -
Short-term financial instruments 10,000,004 - - -
Long-term financial instruments 22,512,169 - - -
Trade and other receivables 87,647,218 - - -
Ir_eocnegi\-/t:lglrg trade rand other 8,689,801 i i i
Total financial assets 165,152,537 - - -
Trade and other payables - 103,276,256 - -
Iﬁg;gé)tleerm trade and other i 1,464,357 i i
Short-term borrowings - 405,413,176 - -
Long-term borrowings - 14,080,00( - -
Other financial liabilities - - - 609,130
Total financial liabilities - 524,233,789 - 609,130

@ Dec 31, 2023

(In thousands of Korean wo

Financial assets

Financial liabilities

Financial assets

Financial liabilities

payable

ltem measured at measured at measured at fair | measured at fair
amortized co: amortized co: value value

Cash and cash equivalents 40,503)091 - - -
Short-term financial instruments 23,170,00( - - -
Long-term financial instruments 14,241,058 - - -
Trade and other receivables 85,822,668 - - -
I;:Cneggi;'fé[g trade rand other 7,066,839 i i i
Other financial assets 2,110 - 469,200 -
Total financial assets 170,805,766 - 469,200 -
Trade and other payables - 108,324,267 - -
Long-term trade and other i 921,695 i i

Short-term borrowings

313,832,309

Long-term borrowings

91,038,90(

Total financial liabilities

514,117,171




6.2 Profit or Loss on Financial Instruments by Catgory

Details of financial incomes and financial expensgsategory of financial instruments for the yeamded December 31,
2024 and 2023, are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)
Item 2024 2023
Financial assets measured at amortized cost:
Interest income 2,874,495 2,802,358
Gain on foreign currency transactions 93,245 3,974
Loss on foreign currency transactions (9,465) (88,505
Gain on foreign currency translation 4,158 9,126
Loss on foreign currency translation (312) (2,910)
Reversal of allowance for bad debt (bad debt exgm®ns (449,979 164,756
Financial assets measured at fair value:
Gain on trading of derivatives 13,828,441 19,418,494
Loss on trading of derivatives (32,428,926 (19,642,581
Gain on valuation of derivatives - 469,200
Loss on valuation of derivatives (609,130 (196,080
Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost:
Interest expense (20,646,658 (21,299,335
Gain on foreign currency transactions 194,303 1,730,510
Loss on foreign currency transactions (8,771,619 (5,649,741
Gain on foreign currency translation - 2,478,181
Loss on foreign currency translation (10,000,957 (544,994
Total (55,922,403 (20,347,547



7. Cash and Cash Equivalents
7.1 Details of Cash and Cash Equivalents

Details of cash and cash equivalents as of DeceBhe2024 and 2023 are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)
Item Dec 31, 2024 Dec 31, 2023
Ordinary deposits 36,303,343 40,503,091

7.2 Details of Restricted Deposits

Details of restricted deposits as of December B242and 2023, are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean wop)
Iltem Dec 31, 2024 Dec 31, 2023 | Financial institution Remarks
Short-term financial 2,000,000 2,000,000 Nonghyup Bank Win-win loans
instruments 7,000,000 5,000,000 Nonghyup Bank
- 7,000,000 Nonghyup Bank
Long-term financial 3,000,000 3,000,000 Gyobo Life Insurance  Collaterals for
instruments 7,600,000 . Shinhan Bank borrowings
7,600,000 - Shinhan Bank
Total 27,200,000 17,000,00(




8. Financial Assets

8.1 Other Financial Assets

The composition of short-term and long-term finaheissets as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 idlawso

(In thousands of Korean won)
ltem Descriptions Dec 31, 2024 Dec 31, 2023
Short-term financial assets Periodical deposits 10,000,00¢ 23,170,00(¢
Long-term financial assets Long-term deposits 22,512,164 14,241,058
Total 32,512,164 37,411,059

8.2 Derivatives

(1) The composition of derivatives as of Decemtgr2924 and 2023 is as follows:

(In thousands of Korean wop)
. Dec 31, 2024 Dec 31, 2023
Current Non-current Current Non-current
Derivatives assets:
Currency futures - - 469,200 -
Total - - 469,200 -
Derivatives liabilities:
Currency futures 609,130 - - -
Total 609,130 - - -




(2) The details of derivatives as of December P4and 2023 is as follows:

@ Dec 31, 2024

(In thousands of Korean won, USD)
. Derivatives assets
Purpose Item Contracting Party Amount (iabilities)
) Samsung Futures USD 29,150,000 (130,570
Trading Currency futures —
Sl Securities USD 99,700,000 (478,560
Total USD 128,850,000 (609,130
@ Dec 31, 2023
(In thousands of Korean won, USP)
. Derivatives assets
Purpose ltem Contracting Party Amount (liabilities)
Samsung Futures UsSD 27,800,000 133,440
Tradi C fut
rading urrency tutures S| Securities USD69,950,000 335,760
Total USD97,750,000 469,200

(3) Profit or loss on trading of derivatives foraye ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 is as follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)

. Gain or loss on valuation Gain or loss on trading

2024 2023 2024 2023
Know out Forward - - (241,600 2,245,018
Forward Exchange - - - 204
CAP(Capped Forward) - - 718,700 564,210
Currency Futures (609,130) 273,120 (19,077,585 (3,033,519
Total (609,130 273,120 (18,600,485 (224,087




9. Inventories

The composition of inventories as of December 8P42and 2023 is as follows:

(In thousands of Korean wo
Dec 31, 2024 Dec 31, 2023

ltem Acquisition Valuation loss Carrying Acquisition Valuation loss Carrying

cost amount cost amount
Goods 2,617,433 - 2,617,433 1,837,017 - 1,837,017
Products 37,783,941 (2,696,433 35,087,504 35,021,990 (1,303,577 33,718,413
Work in progress 4,415,920 - 4,415,920 3,198,301 - 3,198,301
Raw materials 66,100,79( - 66,100,79( 80,735,974 - 80,735,974
Subsidiary materialg 2,457,565 - 2,457,565 2,648,290 - 2,648,290
Stored goods 7,855,360 - 7,855,360 8,721,615 - 8,721,615
Total 121,231,009 (2,696,433) 118,534,57¢ 132,163,191 (1,303,577) 130,859,614

}

As inventories are valued at net realizable vatueJoss on valuation of inventories additionalliglad to the cost of sales
during the current year is KRW1,356,855,000.



10. Biological Assets

10.1 Composition of Biological Assets

The composition of biological assets as of DecerBie2024 and 2023 is as follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)
Item Dec 31, 2024 Dec 31, 2023
Biological assets for production 12,769,371 9,705,764
Biological assets for consumption 28,597,661 24,692,368
Total 41,367,037 34,398,131

10.2 Changes in Biological Assets for Production

Changes in biological assets for production forythars ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 are awoll

@ 2024
(In thousands of Korean won)
Item GPS PS Total
Acquisition cost:
Beginning balance 5,885,095 9,548,221 15,433,316
Acquisition cost 6,581,663 - 6,581,663
Increase due to breeding 631,308 15,218,28( 15,849,588
Disposal amount (4,791,82P) (13,466,346 (18,258,168
Ending balance 8,306,244 11,300,154 19,606,39¢
Accumulated depreciation;
Beginning balance (1,836,289) (3,891,263 (5,727,552
Depreciation (5,334,920) (14,032,724 (19,367,644
Disposal amount 4,791,822 13,466,344 18,258,168
Ending balance (2,379,387) (4,457,641 (6,837,028
Carrying amount:
Beginning balance 4,048,806 5,656,954 9,705,764
Ending balance 5,926,857 6,842,514 12,769,371




@ 2023

(In thousands of Korean wo
Item GPS PS Total

Acquisition cost:

Beginning balance 5,535,778 10,612,226 16,148,004

Acquisition cost 3,226,771 - 3,226,771

Increase due to breeding 705,700 14,214,063 14,919,763

Disposal amount (3,583,154) (15,278,067 (18,861,221

Ending balance 5,885,095 9,548,222 15,433,317
Accumulated depreciation:

Beginning balance (1,715,510) (3,389,968 (5,105,478

Depreciation (3,703,934) (15,779,362 (19,483,296

Disposal amount 3,583,154 15,278,067 18,861,221

Ending balance (1,836,290) (3,891,263 (5,727,553
Carrying amount:

Beginning balance 3,820,268 7,222,258 11,042,526

Ending balance 4,048,805 5,656,959 9,705,764

10.3 Changes in Biological Assets for Consumption

Changes in biological assets for consumption ferytbars ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 ard@sdol

(In thousands of Korean wo

Item Dec 31, 2024 Dec 31, 2023
Beginning carrying amount 24,692,36§ 35,055,461
Increase due to breeding 527,118,518 532,705,121
Increase due to purchasing 18,205,981 24,215,684
Changes in net fair value of harvest 72,003,204 170,664,22(
Changes in net fair value of biological assets held 3,457,037 (668,360
Transfer to inventories after harvest (616,879,447 (737,279,763
Ending carrying amount 28,597,661 24,692,364

4



10.4 Fair Value of Biological Assets for Consumptio

10.4.1 Fair Value Hierarchy

The measurement of fair values of biological assetasured at fair value as of December 31, 20228828 is as follows:

i) Dec 31, 2024

(In thousands of Korean won)

Item Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Blo_loglca_l assets for consumption i i 28.597,661 28.597,661
— Live chickens
i) Dec 31, 2023
(In thousands of Korean won)
Item Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Biological assets for consumption i i 24.692,36¢ 24.692,36¢

— Live chicken:

10.4.2 Valuation Techniques and Inputs of Fair Vala Hierarchy

Valuation techniques for repetitive fair value maasnents classified as Level 3 in the fair valierdnichy and inputs used

in fair value measurement are as follows:

=

Correlation between key
ltem Valuation techniques Unobservable inputs unobservable variables and fai

- Unit price per kg:
Adjusted unit price using the
market price of Korea Broiler

Biological . : Association, Korea Chicken As the estimate of unit price p

Fair value to be determined by - . : .
assets for Association, and Korea Native |kg increases, the estimate of f
- I market approach . o .
consumption Chicken Association as of the endalue increases.

of the reporting period:
- Unit per kg: Application of
estimated average weigl




10.4.3 Fair value measurement methods and assumpti®for biological assets for consumption

In the case of live chickens, the biological as§etsonsumption that are subject to fair valueleation, as there is no
active trading market, the market value publicih@mced by the association is applied to the falues per unit. In
addition, in the case of live chickens that areagng, since there is no transaction price, it sussed that the market price
according to the average weight is linearly distidul.

10.5 Risks exposed in relation to biological assets
The Company is exposed to the following variouksig relation to biological assets.
(D Regulatory and environmental risks

The Company complies with the laws and regulatioinKorea and others regions where the business aite located.
The Company enacts and implements environmentétipslto comply with local environmental and othaws and
management of the Company conducts periodic reviewdentify environmental risks and to ensure thatCompany's
policies are appropriate to manage these risks.

@ Supply and demand risk

The Company is exposed to financial risks arisiognfchanges in the price of biological assets. Chmpany does not
anticipate that the price of biological assets widk decrease significantly in the foreseeableréutoy breeding them
depending on the size of supply and demand reqliestee market.

In addition, the management periodically reviewsdhtlook for the price of biological assets bylgriag industry trends
to ensure that the expected breeding scale anat&xpdemand are consistent.

@ Climate and other risks

The Company may be financially affected from digsaand other risks of biological assets held byGbempany. The
Company monitors the possibility of disease ongalia basis and, if there are signs of diseasegepte the spread of the
disease through extensive quarantine and masgrcaliidition, to strengthen immunity to disease,@ompany improves
breeding facilities and supply high-quality feed liiological assets.



11. Trade and Other Receivables

11.1 Details of Trade and Other Receivables

The composition of trade and other receivables &eoember 31, 2024 and 2023, is as follows.

(In thousands of Korean won)
Dec 31, 2024 Dec 31, 2023
tem Current Non-current Current Non-current
Trade receivable 73,006,764 - 77,037,599 -
Allowance for trade receivables (1,535,531 - (1,094,680 -
Loans - - - -
Allowance for loans - - - -
Account receivables 8,018,905 - 87,407 -
Allowance for account receivables (26,797) - (17,669) -
Accrued income 931,622 - 666,050 -
VAT paid for others 1,677,316 - 1,634,151 -
Security deposits 7,252,255 9,053,466 9,143,961 7,480,268
Allowance for security deposits - (4,480) - (4,480)
Unrealized security deposits - (359,179 - (408,949
Total 89,324,534 8,689,807 87,456,814 7,066,839

11.2 Changes in allowance for bad debts for tradend other receivables

Changes in allowance for bad debts for trade ahdratceivables for the years ended December 24 20d 2023, are

as follows:
(In thousands of Korean wop)
Item Dec 31, 2024 Dec 31, 2023

Beginning balance 1,116,829 1,579,921
Bad debt expenses 449,979

Reversal of allowance for bad debt - (298,336
Writ-off of allowance for bad debt - (164,756
Ending balance 1,566,808 1,116,829




12. Other Assets

12.1 Details of Other Assets

The composition of other assets as of Decembe2®4 and 2023 are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)

Dec. 31, 2024 Dec. 31, 2023

em Current Non-current Current Non-current
Advance payment 178,978 1,217,58 1,027,175 -
Allowance for advance payment - - - -
Advance payment for breeding 3,084,86( - 2,968,663 -
Allowance for breeding advance payme (129,175 - (178,387 -
Prepaid expenses 865,691 1,152,34 868,662 -

Total 4,000,354 2,369,924 4,686,118 -

12.2 Changes in allowance for bad debts in other sests

Changes in allowance for bad debts in other a$setbe years ended December 31, 2024 and 2028sdialows:

(In thousands of Korean wo

Item 2024 2023
Beginning balance 178,387 304,870
Writ-off of allowance for bad debt - (97,520
Reversal of allowance for bad debt (49,212) (28,963
Ending balance 129,175 178,387




13. Investment in subsidiaries
13.1 Details of Investment in Subsidiaries

(1) Details of investment in subsidiaries as of @aber 31, 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)
in busi Dec 31, 2024 Dec 31, 2023
ltem Company Name Location Month | Main business i o = rrving Holding] Carryin
activity ng ying ng ying
Ratic | amoun | Ratic | amoun
Subsidiary HBC Co., Ltd. Korea| Dec. ;?ﬂitr:i’ 90.009¢ 7,032,600 90.00% 7,032,600
Subsidiary . . Poultry L B
*) Sing Green FS Corporation Korea | Dec. farmine 100.00% 19,020,425100.00% 19,020,425
Total 26,053,025 26,053,025

(*) The Company absorbed and merged its subsidg¥ Co., Ltd. during the current year.

13.2 Changes in Investment in Subsidiaries

Changes in investment in subsidiaries as of DeceBheg2024 and 2023 are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)

ltem 2024 2023
Beginning amount 26,053,02% 26,208,09%
Acquisition amount - -
Disposal amount (*) - (155,070
Ending balance 26,053,02% 26,053,02%

(*) Harim Animal Clinic Co., Ltd., a subsidiary, comgd its dissolution and liquidation during the prigear. The
difference between the net residual asset valueived after liquidation and the carrying amountlod investment in
subsidiaries was recognized as a loss on dispbgalestment in subsidiaries.



14. Investment Property

14.1 Changes in Investment Property

Changes in investment property for the years efkember 31, 2024 and 2023 are as follow:

(In thousands of Korean won)
item 2024 2023
Land (*) Building Total Land Building Total

Acquisition cost:

Beginning 5361,174 29,092,816 34,453,990 5,462,602 29,819,610 35,282,217

Disposal (100,939) - (100,939 (101,428) (726,794) (828,222

Changes (*) 559,856 - 559,856 - - -

Ending 5,820,091 29,092,816 34,912,907 5,361,174 29,092,816 34,453,990
Accumulated depreciation:

Beginning 4| (13,825,661) (13,825,661 -] (13,314,241) (13,314,241

Disposal - - - - 178,670 178,670

Changes (*) (687,062 (687,062 - (690,090 (690,090

Ending - (14,512,723) (14,512,723 -] (13,825,661) (13,825,661
Carrying amount:

Beginning 5,361,174 15,267,155 20,628,329 5,462,602 16,505,364 21,967,971

Ending 5,820,091 14,580,093 20,400,184 5,361,174 15,267,155 20,628,329

(*) Changes are the amount which is transferrethfRP&E to investment property.

14.2 Lease revenues/expenses arising from investrheroperty

Details recognized as gain or loss related to imvest properties for the years ended December(®4 and 2023 are as

follow:

(In thousands of Korean wan)

Item 2024 2023
Lease revenue 1,351,971 875,055
Cost of lease (1,208,712 (778,285
Total 143,25¢ 96,770




14.3 Fair Value of Investment Property

Fair value and carrying amount of investment prigpas of December 31, 2024 are as follow:;

(In thousands of Korean wan)
ltem Fair value Carrying amount
Land 5,464,391 5,820,091
Building 25,232,914 14,580,098
Total 30,697,305 20,400,184

As of December 31, 2024, the fair value of investimgroperty was determined using information sushoficially
published real estate prices.



15. Property, Plant and Equipment (PP&E)

15.1 Changes in PP&E

(1) Changes in PP&E for the years ended Decemhe2(®U4 and 2023 are as follows:

@ 2024
(In thousands of Korean wc
Facilities Construction
Item Land Building | Structures| Machinery and Vehicles Others in progress Total
equipmer (*1)
Acquisition cost:
Beginning balance 17,750,131 240,793,668 19,205,797 259,218,483 243,948,001 1,322,719 36,585,854 6,096,333 824,920,99(
Acquisition - - - 394,310 3,015,284 - 1,775,313 22,572,599 27,757,506
Disposal - - (963,065)| (15,447,093] (4,212,659 (344,020) (11,066,455 -| (32,033,292
Other changes (559,856) - -| 7,873,969 7,932,032 - 679,089 (17,726,180) (1,800,947
Ending balance 17,190,274 240,793,668 18,242,732 252,039,668 250,682,659 978,699 27,973,808 10,942,757 818,844,257
Accumulated depreciation:
Beginning balance (70,179,557)  (11,389,892) (161,748,042)| (115,038,803  (1,168,108) (30,832,643 -| (390,357,045)
Disposal - 963,046 15,345,108 4,194,380 343,988 11,013,233 - 31,859,755
Depreciation (5,891,042) (755,849) (14,041,411) (17,773,924 (54,300)|  (2,630,943) -| (41,147,469
Ending balance (76,070,599) (11,182,695) (160,444,345)| (128,618,347) (878,420) (22,450,353 -| (399,644,759)
Accumulated impairment losses
Beginning balance -1 (2,328,824 (31,516) (1,351,600)| (1,866,926) - (67,710) - (5,646,576)
Disposal - - - 10,446 1,352 - 1,275 - 13,073
Ending balance -| (2,328,824 (31,516)| (1,341,154)| (1,865,574) - (66,435) -| (5,633,503)
Government grants:
Beginning balance -| (8,274,054 - (204,446)| (50,779) - - -| (8,529,279
Acquisition - - - -| (166,860) - - - (166,860)
Depreciation - 239,192 - 78,268 20,178 - - - 337,638
Ending balance -| (8,034,862 - (126,178)  (197,461) - - -1 (8,358,501
Carrying amount:
Beginning balance 17,750,131 160,011,233 7,784,389 95,914,395 126,991,493 154,611 5,685,505 6,096,333 420,388,090
Ending balance 17,190,274 154,359,383 7,028,521 90,127,991 120,001,276 100,279 5,457,017 10,942,752 405,207,494

(*1) Other changes in construction in progresstheeamount transferred to PP&E and intangible asset



@ 2023

(In thousands of Korean wc

Facilities Construction
Item Land Building and Vehicles Others in progress Total
equipmer (*1)

Acquisition cost:

Beginning balance 17,151,964 238,379,189 226,678,649 1,414,027 35,461,874 16,204,001 784,719,465
Acquisition - - 2,601,939 - 1,962,443 37,063,367 42,367,169
Disposal - (115,862) (367,327) (91,308)| (1,255,400 -1 (2,147,174
Other changes 598,167 2,530,341 - 15,034,740 - 416,941 (47,171,030 (18,470)
Ending balance 17,750,131 240,793,668 243,948,001 1,322,719 36,585,854 6,096,333 824,920,990
Accumulated depreciation:

Beginning balance (64,240,496 (97,593,007)  (1,186,426) (28,460,497 - | (349,922,984)
Disposal 38,138 362,420 91,304 1,127,326 - 1,875,402
Depreciation (5,977,199) (17,808,216 (72,986)|  (3,499,472) -| (42,309,463
Ending balance (70,179,557 (115,038,803)|  (1,168,108) (30,832,643 -| (390,357,045)
Accumulated impairment losses (*2)

Beginning balance -| (2,328,824 (1,866,926) - (67,710) - (5,646,576)
Ending balance -1 (2,328,824 (1,866,926) - (67,710) -| (5,646,576)
Government grants:

Beginning balance -| (8,513,246 - (59,416) - - -| (8,855,376
Depreciation - 239,192 - 8,637 - - - 326,097
Ending balance -| (8,274,054 - (50,779) - - -| (8,529,279
Carrying amount:

Beginning balance 17,151,964 165,625,447 129,026,226 227,601 7,001,377 16,204,001 425,941,105
Ending balance 17,750,131 160,011,233 126,991,493 154,611 5,685,505 6,096,333 420,388,09(

(*1) Other changes in construction in progresstheeamount transferred to PP&E and intangible asset
(*2) During the prior period, the Company performaa impairment review for the meat processing sedgseash-
generating unit due to continuous operating lossgshe recoverable amount was lower than the magrgmount of the
cash-generating unit, an impairment loss of KRW%3,6@0,000 was recognized and allocated to the léegissets
(buildings, structures, machinery, facilities & gmuent, and other tangible assets) of the meatgssing segment.



15.2 Cash-Generating Unit Impairment Review

The Company performed an impairment review dudéocbntinuous operating losses in the meat prowgssgment's

cash-generating unit. Since the recoverable amedoeeded the carrying amount of the cash-generatiriy no
impairment loss was recognized.

(In millions of Korean won

Item Contents

Cash flow estimation period Estimation of cash fidar 5 years based on the future business plans

Perpetual growth rate Application of 1% in the tighi industry average growth rate
Weighted average cost of capital

7.2%
Comparison target carrying value 91,041
Recoverable value (use value) 91,848
Impairment amount 807

The results of the sensitivity analysis for the uslkeie with respect to changes in the discountaatethe perpetual growth
rate, which are the key variables, are as follows;

(In millions of Korean won

- Discount Rate (WACC)
6.2% 7.2% 8.2%
0.0% 100,474 80,817 66,118
Permanent growth rate 1.0% 117,189 91,848 73,729
2.0% 141,892 107,135 83,800




16. Lease

16.1 Amount recognized in financial statements

The composition of leasehold right-of-use assetsf @ecember 31, 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

@ Dec 31, 2024

(In thousands of Korean won)
Item Acquisition amount Accumulated depreciatiorn Carrying amount
Building 2,623,304 (1,315,800 1,307,504
Facilities and equipment 406,588 (67,765) 338,823
Vehicles 3,755,474 (1,286,142 2,469,336
Others 132,054 (95,373) 36,681
Total 6,917,424 (2,765,080 4,152,344

@ Dec 31, 2023

(In thousands of Korean wop)
Item Acquisition amount Accumulated depreciatio Carrying amount
Building 2,817,860 (1,502,893 1,314,967
Facilities and equipment 582,449 (264,127 318,322
Vehicles 4,690,67( (2,358,857 2,331,813
Others 132,054 (51,353) 80,701
Total 8,223,033 (4,177,230 4,045,803




16.2 Amount recognized in Income Statement

Expenses incurred from leases for the years enéedrbber 31, 2024 and 2023, are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean woh)
ltem 2024 2023
Interest expense incurred on lease liabilities 282,505 323,040
Short-term lease related expenses 480,644 742,715
Costs related to small asset lease 1,855,434 1,604,590
Variable lease payments not included in lease sisset liabilities (*) 222,414 483,638
Total expense 2,840,997 3,153,983

(*) In applying the recognition exemption criteria feases under K-IFRS 1116, the difference betweeohpsges and
sales in the form of transactions where chicksfard are sold to farmers for contract farming anestock is recognized
as a fee for the facilities excluded from leaseoaating under the variable lease requirements. iHulsides expenses
related to rearing such as fuel, electricity, wateterinary medicine, and labor costs, and may dapending on the
quality of the live chickens. Therefore, due to thificulty in measuring lease expenses for sucéesan practice, the
amount of such cases was not separately calcudaigdisclosed

16.3 Changes in Right-of-Use Assets

Changes in the carrying amount of leasehold righise assets for the years ended December 31, &@22023, are as

follows:
@ 2024
(In thousands of Korean wo
- Increase/ L .
Item Beginning decreas Depreciation Ending balance
Building 1,354,694 1,630,931 (1,652,431 1,335,025
Facilities and equipment 318,3p2 406,588 (386,087 338,823
Vehicles 2,705,141 1,509,894 (1,509,453 2,705,586
Others 80,699 - (44,018) 36,681
Total 4,458,856 3,547,417 (3,591,989 4,416,115
@ 2023
(In thousands of Korean wo
- Increase/ L .
Item Beginning decreas Depreciation Ending balance
Building 1,287,214 1,567,354 (1,539,604 1,314,968
Facilities and equipment 95,843 582,449 (359,970 318,322
Vehicles 2,252,491 1,439,302 (1,359,979 2,331,814
Others 124,717 - (44,018) 80,699
Total 3,760,269 3,589,105 (3,303,571 4,045,803




16.4 Changes in Lease Liabilities

Changes in lease liabilities for the years endeceDwer 31, 2024 and 2023, are as follows:

@ 2024
(In thousands of Korean wo
Item Beginning Change Interest expense Payments Ending balance
Lease liability 3,771,30 2,918,848 282,505 (3,086,507 3,886,155
@ 2023
(In thousands of Korean wo
Item Beginning Change Interest expense Payments Ending balance
Lease liability 3,659,45 2,895,376 323,040 (3,106,565 3,771,309




17. Intangible Assets

Changes in intangible assets for the years endedrbiger 31, 2024 and 2023, are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean wo

2024 2023
fem Mem*bership Software Iggc;Jsgrlt?/l Total Mem*bership Software Iggc;Jsgrlt?/l Total
(*1) rights (*1) rights
Acquisition cost:
Beginning 546,791 10,337,162 96,695 10,980,648 673,791 10,271,435 78,225 11,023,451
Acquisition - 190,014 - 190,016 - 101,627 - 101,627
Disposal - (863,500 - (863,500 (127,000 (35,900) - (162,900
Other changes (*2 770,760 122,300 7,189 900,249 - - 18,470 18,470
Ending 1,317,551 9,785,97§ 103,884 11,207,413 546,791 10,337,162 96,695 10,980,648
Accumulated amortization:
Beginning -| (9,786,013) (53,689) (9,839,702 -] (9,409,623)] (42,294) (9,451,917
Amortization - (260,302) (14,178) (274,480 - (412,287) (11,395) (423,682
Disposal - 863,499 - 863,499 - 35,897 - 35,897
Ending -| (9,182,816) (67,867) (9,250,683 -] (9,786,013] (53,689) (9,839,702
Carrying amount:
Beginning 546,791 551,149 43,006 1,140,944 673,791 861,812 35,931 1,571,534
Ending 1,317,551 603,162 36,017, 1,956,73Q 546,791 551,149 43,006 1,140,946

(*1) As there is no foreseeable limit on the permder which it is
membership is indefinite and not amortized accaylgin

(*2) Other changes are the amounts transferred RERE.

expected to be used, the estichateeful life of



18. Trade and Other Payables

The composition of trade and other payables aseakihber 31, 2024 and 2023 is as follows:

(In thousands of Korean wo

Dec 31, 2024 Dec 31, 2023

em Current Non-current Current Non-current
Trade payables (*) 38,611,654 - 42,482,881 -
Account payables 37,292,910 - 33,324,526 -
Accrued expenses 21,925,773 1,019,357 27,032,054 666,695
Deposits received 1,529,6P6 - 1,529,764 -
Import deposit 3,916,223 445,000 3,955,042 255,000

Total 103,276,256 1,464,357 108,324,267 921,695

(*) In accordance with agreements with financiatitutions, when it is determined that the terma @&bility have been
substantially changed due to the financial providaying suppliers on behalf of the Company, thddrpayables are
derecognized and short-term borrowings are recedn(zefer to Note 19). As of Dec. 31, 2024, thepdiep finance

arrangement liabilities included in trade payalsle®unt to KRW 14,217,000,000 (2023: KRW 12,649,000).



19. Borrowings

19.1 Details of Borrowings

The composition of borrowings as of December 32428nd 2023, is as follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)

- Dec 31, 2024 Dec 31, 2023
Current Non-current Current Non-current
Short-term borrowings (*) 322,233,717 - 292,048,309 -
Long-term borrowings (*) 63,190,00( 14,080,00( 21,784,000 71,070,000
Bonds 20,000,00( - - 20,000,000
Discount on bonds payables (10,541) - - (31,100)
Total 405,413,176 14,080,00( 313,832,309 91,038,90(

(*) As of December 31, 2024, financial assets, mwdes, PP&E and investment properties were pexvids collaterals
for borrowings from banks (refer to Note 23).

19.2 Details of Short-term Borrowings

(1) The composition of short-term borrowings a®etember 31, 2024 and 2023 is as follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)
Lender Type Interest rate (%) Dec 31, 2024 Dec 31, 2023
General loan MOR+1.50 9,000,000 9,000,000
Nonghyup Bank
General loan MOR+1.82 1,940,000 1,940,000
General loan CD (3M) + 1.644 20,000,000 20,000,00(
KEB Hana Bank L Finance Bond
Facility Loan (6M) + 1.612 18,750,00( 23,750,000
Industrial Finance Bond
KDB General loan (6M) + 1.1¢ 57,000,00( 57,000,00(
General loan 4.69 25,800,000 25,800,00(
Export-Import General loan Expog'-:/lmpio]r-t :LBSa~n1k‘Bond 8,500,000 16,500,00(
Bank of Korea - ( p ) 'B k“B p
xportdmport Bank Bon
General loan (3M) + 0.9~0.9 40,000,00( 20,000,00(
SH Bank General loan MOR + 174 13,000,000 -
Kookmin Bank Import L/C Term SOFR + 1.00 128,243,711 118,058,309
Total 322,233,717 292,048,309




(2) Supplier Finance Arrangement Liabilities

Supplier finance arrangements are characterizednleyor more financial institutions paying the amtsuowed by the
Company to suppliers, and the Company paying thenfiial institutions according to the terms of éheangement after
the suppliers receive payment. These arrangemeowsdp the Company with extended payment terms heybe due
date of the related invoices or allow the Compasy{spliers to receive payment earlier.

The Company has entered into supplier finance geents with several financial institutions, undéiich the banks
acquire rights to specific trade receivables frarppdiers. The following terms have been changea@ assult of the
arrangements, while other terms are the same dsriing of trade payables to the respective sugplier

- The payment due date is 180 days after the inwvidte and can be extended in 90-day increments.

- The trade payables acquired by the banks can meidre offset against credits received from thepkers.

Scope of Payment Due Dec 31, 2024 Dec 31, 2023

Supplier Finance Arrangement After 180 days from the date of After 180 days from the date of
Liabilities invoice invoice

Trade payables not a part of Supplier Within 30 days from the date of Within 30 days from the date of
Finance Arrangement Liabilities invoice invoice

Carrying amount of supplier finance arrangemeatsilities is as follow:

(In thousands of Korean won)

Item Dec 31, 2024 Dec 31, 2023 Jan 01, 2023

Supplier Finance Arrangement Liabilities 142,466,45 130,707,434 214,448,472

Supplier finance arrangement liabilities for
which financial institutions have paid 128,243,717 118,058,309 192,543,035

suppliers

There were no significant business combinatiorexohange rate differences that affected the supi@nce arrangement
liabilities, and these liabilities are considerdars-term, so their carrying amount is a reasonapleroximation of their
fair value.

(3) Significant Judgement — Supplier Finance Areangnts

The Company has entered into supplier finance genaents, agreeing to support the cash flows afuppliers. Under

these arrangements, banks acquire rights to spddiiile receivables of the suppliers. Following thequisition, the

Company can no longer make early direct paymenteaasuppliers and cannot offset the debt agaétstivables from

the suppliers. The Company has judged it apprapt@terecognize the existing financial liabilihgde payables, in the
statement of financial position and recognize a fieancial liability (short-term borrowings), codgring that the terms
of the liability have been substantially changedrupayment by the financial institutions.

In the statement of cash flows, the managementdsidered the financial institutions to be segtlpayments on behalf
of the Company. Therefore, the amounts paid byfittacial institutions are presented as cash owtflfrom operating
activities and cash inflows from financing actiggi Subsequent payments made by the Company tfintecial
institutions are presented as cash outflows frevarfting activities (refer to Note 35).



19.3 Details of Long-term Borrowings

The composition of long-term borrowings as of Deben1, 2024 and 2023, are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)
Lender Type Interest rate (%) Dec 31, 2024 Dec 31, 2023
General loan 3.0 570,000 760,000
General loan 2.5 - 1,344,000
Nonghyup Bank
General loan - 45,000,000 54,000,00(
General loan 3.00 6,200,000 3,000,000
Facility loan CD (3M) + 1.54 14,250,000 17,250,00(
KEB Hana Bank —
Facility loan CD (3M) + 2.62 - 1,500,000
. Industrial Finance Bond
KDB Facility loan (6M) +1,9¢ 11,250,00( 15,000,00(
Subtotal 77,270,000 92,854,00(
Liquidity Substitution (63,190,000) (21,784,000
Total 14,080,00( 71,070,00(

19.4 Details of Bonds

Details of bonds as of December 31, 2024 and 262 2asfollows:

(In thousands of Korean wan)
ltem Date of issue Maturity Interest rate (% Dec 31, 2024 Dec 31, 2023
g:)r':'(;’snif”arameed 2022-06-30 | 2025-06-30 4.80% 20,000,000 20,000,000
‘ Total 20,000,000 20,000,000

(*) Regarding bonds other than the 5th private gtaent bonds, there is a covenant stipulating fhitheibenefit of time
is lost for those other bonds, the benefit of timik also be lost for the 5th private placement éen

19.5 Repayment Schedule of Borrowings

The repayment schedule of borrowings as of Dece®bgeP024 is as follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)

ltem Within 1 year 1~2 years 2-3 years Over 3 years Total
Short-term borrowings 322,233,7[L7 - - - 322,233,717
Long-term borrowings 63,190,000 10,140,00( 3,940,000 - 77,270,00(
Bonds 20,000,000 - - - 20,000,00(

Total 405,423,717 10,140,00( 3,940,000 - 419,503,717




20. Other Financial Liabilities

The composition of other financial liabilities alslmecember 31, 2024 and 2023, is as follows:

Item

(In thousands of Korean wo
Dec 31, 2024 Dec 31, 2023
Current Non-current Current Non-current

Derivatives Liabilities

609,130

21. Other Liabilities

The composition of other liabilities as of DecemBér 2024 and 2023, are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean wo

Item Dec 31, 2024 Dec 31, 2023
Advances received 1,755,210 1,778,541
Greenhouse gas emission liability 85,397 79,078
Other current liabilities 46,000 -
Total 1,886,607 1,857,624




22. Employee Benefits

22.1 Detalils of liabilities related to defined berfd liability and other employee benefit

Net assets and liabilities related to employee fitsrte be recognized in the statements of findrmigition as of December
31, 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean wop)
Item Dec 31, 2024 Dec 31, 2023
Defined benefit liability (assets) (90,895) 569,937
Annual paid leave allowance liabilities 4,661,331 3,707,104
Other long-term employee benefit liabilities 1,57 666,695

22.2 Changes in defined benefit liability and plamssets

Adjustments to defined benefit liabilities (assdts)the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2028sdialows:

(In thousands of Korean wo

tem Defined benefit obligationy  Fair value of plan assets '\Iliztbﬁi?ifégeg sse;?fit
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Beginning balance 51,542,057 45,572,637 (50,972,119) (49,847,421 569,93 (4,274,784
Recognized as expense for the year:
Current service cost 7,444,202 7,430,914 - - 7,444,297 7,430,914
Interest cost (income) 1,726,475 2,062,628 (1,705,168) (2,276,797 21,307 (214,169
Subtotal 9,170,767 9,493,544 (1,705,168) (2,276,797 7,465,599 7,216,747
Recognized in other comprehensive income:
Loss (gain) on
remeasuremen
- Actuarial gain or loss
Demographic assumptions (572) (88,777) - - (572) (88,777)
Financial assumptions 3,613,847 560,578 - - 3,613,847 560,578
Experience adjustment 1,543,232 2,964,511 - - 1,543,232 2,964,511
- Loss on plan assets - - (277,666 759,108 (277,666 759,108
Subtotal 5,156,507 3,436,312 (277,666 759,108 4,878,841  4,195,42(
Others
Contributions paid - -| (12,000,000) (5,700,000) (12,000,000) (5,700,000
Wages paid (6,609,43f7) (6,964,065 5,567,024 6,039,912 (1,042,409 (924,153
Transfer from affiliates 47,248 125,196 - (57,403) 47,248 67,793
Transfer to affiliates (147,03y) (121,567 136,925 110,482 (10,112) (11,085)
Subtotal (6,709,228) (6,960,436) (6,296,047 392,991 (13,005,273) (6,567,445
Ending balance 59,160,105 51,542,057 (59,251,000) (50,972,119 (90,895) 569,938




22.3 Composition of Plan Assets

The composition of plan assets as of December@®24 2nd 2023 is as follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)
ltem Dec 31, 2024 Dec 31, 2023
Equity securities 2,796,051 2,035,414
Debt securities 2,125,027 1,420,178
Financial instruments such as term and periodiositp 52,193,474 45,173,28(
Transfer to National Pension 6,424 7,805
Others 2,130,019 2,335,443
Total 59,251,00( 50,972,12(

Amounts related to defined benefit liabilities dDecember 31, 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)
Item Dec 31, 2024 Dec 31, 2023
Defined benefit obligation 59,160,104 51,542,057
Plan assets (59,251,000 (50,972,120
Under-accumulated amount of plan assets (90,895) 569,937
rReelz;:g:jc;I(;aélé)f?n(;ijdtl)f;reef?tcgsligztt\i/\(/een original mssties and actual valu (5,156,507 (3,436,312
éollgl:z:jnlinglgr: gg'fjrences between origiredtimates and actual valy 277.666 (759,108

22.4 Key Actuarial Assumptions

Details of the key assumptions used to evaluateaiimeasurement components of the defined benefitged of December

31, 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

Item Dec 31, 2024 Dec 31, 2023
Discount rate 3.19% 3.70%
Future wage growth rate 4.06% 3.02%

As of December 31, 2024, the weighted average iitpatfrthe defined benefit liabilities is 4.46  ysa



22.5 Sensitivity Analysis of Defined Benefit Obligéon

The impact on the defined benefit obligation if leaignificant actuarial assumption as of the enthefcurrent period
were to change within its reasonably possible rasges follow:

@ Sensitivity analysis according to discount rate

(In thousands of Korean won)
Discount rate Discount rate
Item 1% down Dec 31, 2024 1% up
Present value of defined benefit obligation 61,838 59,160,104 56,717,174
Applicable discount rate 2.19% 3.19% 4.19%
Increase or decrease 2,676,748 - (2,442,929

@ Sensitivity analysis according to the wage growstie

(In thousands of Korean wop)
Wage growth rate Wage growth rate
ltem 1% down Dec 31, 2024 1% up
Present value of defined benefit obligation 56,686,131 59,160,104 61,820,204
Applicable wage growth rate 3.06% 4.06% 5.06%
Increase or decrease (2,473,969 - 2,660,105

22.6 Impact of Defined Benefit Plan on Future Casklows

Meanwhile, the expected contributions to be paithefollowing year (2025) related to the definemhéfit plan amount
to KRW 8,132,615,000.



23. Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

23.1 Details of Pending Lawsuits and Non-lawsuit @ms as Defendant

The pending lawsuits of the Company as of Decen}ier2024 are as follows, and the outcome of theslsw is

unpredictable.

n)

(In thousands of Korean wo
Court Plaintiff Defendant Descriptions Value Progress
Seoul Central . . Case of Violation of the 1sttrial in
Court - Harim Corporation| Monopoly Re_gu_latlon_ (_’;md_Falr “| progress
Trade Act (Criminal Litigatior

23.2 Status of Borrowing Limit Commitments

Commitments with financial institutions as of Dedmn31, 2024 are as follow:

(In USD, thousands of Korean wan)

Lender Descriptions Amount used Limit

KEB Hana Bank USD 8,481,507 USD 20,020,00
Woori Bank USD 8,813,939 USD 14,200,00
KDB USD 15,222,597 USD 30,000,00
Kookmin Bank USD 10,765,903 USD 20,000,00
Nonghyup Bank USD 3,420,283 USD 12,000,00
Fisheries Cooperative Federatio Import L/C Guarantee USD 5,160,604 USD 10,000,00
Export-Import Bank of Korea uUsD 12,077,838 USD 26,000,00
Shinhan Bank USD 1,633,365 USD 15,000,00
Jeonbuk Bank USD5,555,617 USD 10,000,00
SC Cheil Bank USD 12,671,533 USD 20,000,00
IM Bank USD 3,437,443 USD 10,000,00

30,000,00( USD 23,000,00
Export-Import Bank of Korea Import loan 31,800,00( USD 24,000,00

12,500,00( 12,500,00(
KEB Hana Bank Working capital & facility 53,000,00P0 66,195,60(
KDB Working capital & facility 68,250,000 68,250,00(
Shinhan Bank General foreign currency logn - UsSD20,000,00
Nonghyup Bank Working capital 62,710,000 62,710,00(
SH Bank Working capital 13,000,000 13,000,00(
Hanyang Securities (*) Bonds 20,000,000 20,000,00(

Total

USD 87,240,624

USD 254,220,00

KRW 291,260,000

KRW 242,655,60

)]

(*) Regarding bonds other than the 5th private gtaent bonds, there is a covenant stipulating fhtheibenefit of time
is lost for those other bonds, the benefit of timik also be lost for the 5th private placement éen



23.3 Details of Assets provided as Collateral

(1) Details of assets provided as collateral fabilities of the Company as of the December 314242 as follows:

(In USD, thousands of Korean wq
CllEHEEEE: Carrying amount] gl Type Borrowing amoun Provided to
asset amoun
160,000,000| General Fund$ 53,000,000 KEB Hana Bank
18,328,000| General Fundg 10,940,000 Nonghyup Bank
- 8,270,000| General Fundg USD8,813,939 Woori Bank
Land, building, 409.107.626
machinery and etg. U 68,250,000
134,750,000| General Funds KDB
USD 15,222,597
84,000,000| General Funds 34,300,00q EXPortimport
Bank of Korei
Short-term
financial 7,000,000 7,000,000 General Fundg 7,000,000 Nonghyup Bank
instrument
Lfc_mg—te_r:n 3,000,000 3,000,000| General Funds 12,000,000 Nonghyup Bank
inancia
instrument 15,200,000 16,720,000| General Fundg -| Shinhan Bank
USD 63.700.000 USD 12,077,833
Inventories 118,534,576 " Import Usance 30,000,009 CXPortimport
Bank of Korea
13,000,000 10,000,000
Total - USD 63,700,000 USD 36,114,369
otal
KRW 552,842,201 KRW 445,068,000 KRW 225,490,00(

(2) As of Dec. 31, 2024, there are no assets ptedgecollateral for related parties.

23.4 Details of Assets Received as Collateral

As of Dec. 31, 2024, there are no assets receivedlateral.

23.5 Details of Guarantees provided for Others

n)

Details of payment guarantee provided for tligarties (individual farmers) other than relatedipa as of December 31,
2024 are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean wan)
Beneficiary Guarantee limit Drawn amount Guarantee details Issuing Bank
16 parties other than 4,85310D 2580200  DebtGuaranted o0 Capital
Farm Corporatiol

23.6 Details of Guarantees received from Others

As of Dec. 31, 2024, there are no guarantees reddrom others.



23.7 Others

Details of outstanding derivative financial instrem contracts as of the December 31, 2024 and @628s follows:

(In USD)

Item

Dec 31, 2024

Dec 31, 2023

Currency futures

125,850,000

97,750,000

24. Capital and Capital Surplus
24.1 Details of Capital

(1) The composition of capital as of December IV Land 2023 is as follow:

(In thousands of Korean wop)

Item

Dec 31, 2024

Dec 31, 2023

Number of authorized shares

200,

000,000 shares

200,000,000 shares

Number of shares issued

106,209,702 sharg

106,209,702 shares

Value per share

KRW500

KRW500

Capital — common share

53,104,851

53,104,851

(2) There are no changes in the number of shasesdsby the controlling entity for the years enBetember 31, 2024

and 2023.

24.2 Capital Surplus

The composition of capital surplus as of Decemlier2824 and 2023 is as follow:

(In thousands of Korean won)

Item

Dec 31, 2024

Dec 31, 2023

Capital surplus in excess of par value (*1,2)

258,344

256,293,544

(*1) On January 1, 2011, the Company adopted agtiomal share allocation method for its demergemf Harim
Holdings Co., Ltd. As a result, the assets andlitas acquired from the demerged company (formetdrim Corporation)
were accounted for at carrying amount, and theysagramount of the acquired net assets includedraount of
KRW151,396,892,000 that exceeded the par valukeohares issued by the Company.

(*2) On March 3, 2020, the Company issued new shfimethe purpose of a business combination, riespith an amount
of KRW39,875,991,000 that exceeded the par valubethares issued by the Company.



25. Capital Adjustment and Other Accumulated Comprdiensive Income

The composition of other equity items as of Decem@ie 2024 and 2023, is as follows:

(In thousands of Korean wop)
Item Dec 31, 2024 Dec 31, 2023
Other capital adjustments (*1) (27,360,647 (27,360,647
Treasury stock (*2,3) (77,314) (77,314)
Total (27,437,961 (27,437,961

(*1) Upon the business combination with Green Béai Co., Ltd. in 2020, the Company adjusted cabitahe difference
between the consideration transferred and the icgrgmount of the net assets acquired.

(*2) When allocating new shares to existing shaladrs due to spin-off, the Company paid in cashatineunt calculated
based on the closing price traded in the stock eiark of the date of suspension of trading of b&des to the shareholders
of fractional shares less than a share, which wegeired by the Company.

(*3) In the business combination with Green BioA@p., Ltd. in 2020, the Company acquired 19,058ehthrough the
exercise of appraisal rights by shareholders atsh @f KRW 52,700,000, which were recorded as trgashares. As of
the end of the current period, the number of trgashares held by the Company is 22,520 shares

26. Retained Earnings
26.1 Details of Retained Earnings

The composition of retained earnings as of DecerBheR024 and 2023 is as follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)
ltem Dec 31, 2024 Dec 31, 2023
Legal reserve (*) 1,388,922 1,070,360
Unappropriated retained earnings (7,666,674 17,662,523
Total (6,277,752 18,732,884

(*) According to the Commercial Act, the legal reseis required to accumulate at least 10% of tteditpdividends in
each settlement period until it reaches 50% ofagstal. The legal reserve shall not be distributecsh and may only be
used to compensate for losses carried forwardrandfer to capital by resolution of the general tingeof shareholders

Changes in retained earnings for the years endedrbiger 31, 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean wop)
Item 2024 2023
Beginning balance 18,732,883 14,125,494
Annual dividends (17,965,857 10,049,71(
Net Income (loss) (3,185,615 (2,123,744
Remeasurements for net defined benefit plans (31839 (3,318,577
Ending balance (6,277,752 18,732,883




26.2 Statement of Appropriation of Retained Earning (Deficit)

Statement of Appropriation of Retained Earningstfier years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 idlawd.

(In thousands of Korean won)
2024 2023
ltem Expected date of appropriatio] ~Fixed date of appropriation:
Mar. 26, 202 Mar. 27, 202
I. Unappropriated retained earnings (7,666,674) - 17,662,523
;Jr?:rp};l)égpriated retaineghrnings carried from th 14,158,346 10,931,390 i
Current net income (17,965,8537) 10,049,710 -
Remeasurements for net defined benefit plans (31839 (3,318,577 -
Il. Appropriation of retained earnings - 3,504,177
Dividend - 3,185,615
Legal reserve - 318,562
oss.74

27. Revenue from Contracts with Customers

27.1.1 Composition of Revenue Sources

The composition of revenue sources for the yeade@ecember 31, 2024 and 2023 is as follows:

(In thousands of Korean wop)

Item 2024 2023
Revenue from contracts with customers 1,158,285,574 1,188,344,521
Revenue from changes in fair value less cost te§blological assets 75,460,241 169,995,859

Total

1,233,745,81%

1,358,340,380




Revenues generated from contracts with customeyerdiéng on major geographic markets, major produact service
contracts, and revenue recognition timing are Hsvs:

(In thousands of Korean won)
Item 2024 2023
(1) Major geographic markets
Republic of Korea 1,149,334,608 1,179,968,179
United States of America 6,234,241 5,849,973
Canada 697,45(Q 1,045,816
Japan 495,169 619,350
Hong Kong 347,031 215,710
Others 1,177,075 645,493
Total 1,158,285,574 1,188,344,521
(2) Major product and service lines
Revenue from sale of products 1,059,130,931 1,087,683,553
Revenues from sale of goods 63,417,827 68,727,693
Other sales 35,736,816 31,933,274
Total 1,158,285,574 1,188,344,521
(3) Timing of revenue recognition
Fulfillment at one point 1,157,404,812 1,187,484,578
Fulfillment over time 880,762 859,943
Total 1,158,285,574 1,188,344,521

The above table does not include income from chagéair value less cost to sell of biologicaletss



28. Greenhouse Gas Emission Liabilities
28.1 Greenhouse gas emission rights held for thelfillment of obligations
28.1.1 The number of emission rights allocated freef charge for the 3 planning period (2021-2025)

The number of emission rights allocated free ofrghdor the 3 planning period (2021-2025) as of Dec 31, 2024sis
follows.

(Unit: Ton (tCO2-eq)
Item 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 Total
Free allotted emission rights 77,180 77,180 77,180 76,456 76,456 384,452

28.1.2Changes and carrying amounts of emission rights

Changes and carrying amounts of emission rightd B&ecember 31, 2024 are as follows:

(Unit: Ton (tCO2-eq), In thousands of Korean won)
2023 2024 2025
em Quantity %?Tr]:)ylir:]g Quantity %?Tr]:)ylir:]g Quantity (;i:gyllrrl]g
Free allocation at beginning of the year  77,18( - 76,454 - 76,456 -
Additional allocation (*) 15,21 - 15,214 - - -
Purchase (Sell) 7,981 73,66( - - - -
Submit to the government (100,371 (73,660] (100,999 - - -
Carried forward - - - - - -
Ending balance - - (9,333 - 76,456 -

(*) Due to the addition of the Bio Headquarterssélk, Jeongeup), Processing Plant 2 and LivestamteBsing Facility,
the Company plans to apply for additional free @dkion in 2024. The estimated emissions for 2024180,999 tons, and
the shortfall of 9,333 tons is expected to be pased from the market.

28.1.3 Provision of Collaterals

There are no emission rights provided as colladeaalof Dec 31, 2024.

28.2 Emission Liability
28.2.1 Estimated greenhouse gas emissions for ttempliance year

As of the end of the current period, the Compaegtmated greenhouse gas emissions for 2024 ar8@3¥Ptons (tCO2-
eq). An emissions allowance liability has been ggized for the shortfall of 9,333 tons (tCO2-egYlecting the year-end
market price.



28.2.2 Changes in emission liabilities and the caring amount

Changes in emission liabilities for the years enbBedember 31, 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean wo

Item 2024 2023
Beginning balance 79,078 92,272
Transfer 85,397 79,078
Reversal (79,078 (92,272)
Ending balance 85,397 79,078




29. Selling and Administrative Expenses

The composition of selling and administrative exgemnfor the years ended December 31, 2023 and B0&2 follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)

Item 2024 2023
Wage 37,407,764 37,827,547
Retirement benefits 2,573,822 2,986,504
Employee benefits 5,278,600 4,536,925
Travel and transportation 708,216 651,596
Communications 535,075 509,412
Water and utilities 45,940 39,201
Electricity 510,540 464,125
Taxes and dues 3,016,641 2,911,475
Rents 1,814,599 2,014,531
Repairs 1,078,079 1,232,129
Insurance premiums 618,200 754,846
Entertainment 320,340 304,608
Advertising 5,129,004 12,794,044
Freight 54,543,316 55,332,48(
Commissions 27,260,971 26,124,284
Vehicle maintenance 1,264,471 1,171,336
Consumables 2,229,814 2,063,844
Books and printing 126,029 124,325
Education and training 227,316 232,418
Sales promotion 333,945 329,345
Depreciation 6,524,625 6,851,984
Storage 566,77(Q 145,007
Ordinary development 1,062,001 1,123,264
Bad debt expenses (reversal) 400,768 (193,719
Amortization of intangible assets 257,852 412,354
Amortization of right-of-use assets 2,472,726 2,158,614

Total 156,307,437 162,902,488




30. Expenses by Nature

Expenses (including cost of sales and selling & iatstrative expenses) by nature for the years emkmember 31, 2024

and 2023 are as follows:

(1) 2024
(In thousands of Korean won)
Selling &
ltem administrative Cost of sales Total
expense
Changes in products and work in progress - (2,586,713 (2,586,713
Amount of raw materials used - 609,946,708 609,946,708
Cost of goods sold - 53,335,864 53,335,864
Employee benefits 45,260,187 96,778,542 142,038,729
Depreciation 5,837,563 34,972,264 40,809,831
Depreciation of investment properties 687,062 - 687,062
Amortization of intangible assets 257,852 16,628 274,480
Amortization of right-of-use assets 2,472,726 940,814 3,413,540
Depreciation of biological assets - 19,367,644 19,367,644
Other expenses 101,792,047 242,547,422 344,339,469
Total 156,307,437 1,055,319,17Y 1,211,626,614
(2) 2023
(In thousands of Korean won)
Selling &
ltem administrative Cost of sales Total
expense
Changes in products and work in progress - (8,168,049 (8,168,049
Amount of raw materials used - 738,752,724 738,752,724
Cost of goods sold - 53,977,724 53,977,728
Employee benefits 45,350,977 93,481,581 138,832,558
Depreciation 6,161,894 35,821,464 41,983,366
Depreciation of investment properties 690,090 - 690,090
Amortization of intangible assets 412,356 11,326 423,682
Amortization of right-of-use assets 2,158,615 1,144,956 3,303,571
Depreciation of biological assets - 19,483,296 19,483,296
Other expenses 108,128,552 225,575,90( 333,704,452
Total 162,902,488 1,160,080,930 1,322,983,418




31. Other Operating Income

31.1 Other Operating Revenue

The composition of other income for the years erdedember 31, 2024 and 2023 is as follows.

(In thousands of Korean wo

Item 2024 2023
Rents income 34,101 65,265
Gain on disposal of PP&E 114,207 278,218
Gain on disposal of investment properties 9,061 422,849
Miscellaneous income 9,300,050 3,159,429
Gain on insurance adjustment - 484,057
Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets 25,301 61,634
Total 9,482,720 4,471,452

31.2 Other Operating Expenses

The composition of other operating expenses foydaes ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 is asvi®llo

(In thousands of Korean wo

Item 2024 2023
Loss on disposal of PP&E 88,938 160,676
Loss on disposal of investment properties - 276,302
Impairment loss on PP&E - 5,646,578
Donation 528,92( 488,714
Miscellaneous losses 512,198 637,484
Loss on disposal of intangible assets 1 3
Loss on disposal of investment in subsidiaries - 94,215
Total 1,130,057 7,303,977




32. Financial Income and Financial Expenses

32.1 Financial Income

The composition of financial income for the yeamsled December 31, 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)
ltem 2024 2023
Interest income 2,874,495 2,802,358
Gain on foreign currency transactions 287,548 1,734,484
Gain on foreign currency translation 4,158 2,487,301
Gain on trading of derivatives 13,828,441 19,418,494
Gain on valuation of derivatives - 469,200
Total 16,994,647 26,911,843

32.2 Financial Expenses

The composition of financial expenses for the yesuded December 31, 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)
ltem 2024 2023
Interest expense 20,646,659 21,299,334
Loss on foreign currency transactions 8,781,084 5,738,246
Loss on foreign currency translation 10,001,268 547,904
Loss on trading of derivatives 32,428,926 19,642,581
Loss on valuation of derivatives 609,130 196,080
Total 72,467,066 47,424,144




33. Income Tax Expenses

33.1 Composition of Income Tax Expenses

The composition of income tax expenses for thegyeaded December 31, 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean wop)
Item 2024 2023
Current income tax - 2,726,917
Sgiil:)sérents recognized in the current period forrent income tax for therior (160,943 71.640
g:i?fg?egﬁcselg' deiferred income tax due to the occuerand disappearanoétemporary 116,076 (4,038,770
Changes in deferred income tax due to tax losseeddorward (8,009,514) 2,325,801
Total income tax expense (8,054,381 1,085,584
Income tax expense related to items recognizedhes than profit or loss 1,019,6¥8 876,843
Income tax expense (7,034,703) 1,962,431

33.2 Relationship between Income Tax Expense and éaunting Income

The relationship between income tax expense anubating income for the years ended December 314 208 2023, is

as follows:
(In thousands of Korean wop)
Item 2024 2022
Net income before tax (25,000,560 12,012,141
Tax burden according to applicable tax rate (5,225,117 2,488,537
Adjustments:
Lnucr(;)?see tax effect of non-taxable income and deductible expenses for t (1,461,067 177,125
Tax credits and tax reductions (277,357 (726,925
Effect of change in tax rate - 25,813
Income tax refund (160,943 71,640
Others 89,781 (73,759)
Income tax expense (7,034,703 1,962,431
Average effective tax rate * 16.34%

(*) The average effective tax rate was not cal@das there was net loss before income tax exgentee current period.



33.3 Income Tax Effect directly reflected in othecomprehensive income and capital

Current income tax and deferred income tax reledgtems recognized as other than current incontessrfor the years

ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 are as follows.

(In thousands of Korean wop)
Item 2024 2023
Current income tax:
- Remeasurements for defined benefit plans (*) 9,818 876,843
lp)nrgcf)itm:r rg; expense related to items recognizedtteer ¢than the curre 1,019,674 876,843

(*) Income tax related to the remeasurements ofiifned benefit plan was recognized in other cahensive income.

33.4 Timing of collection and payment of deferredrnicome tax assets and liabilities

Times of collection and payment of deferred incdmeassets and liabilities are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)
Item 2024 2023

Deferred income tax assets
Deferred income tax assets to be collected aftend2ths 31,252,452 21,782,664
Deferred income tax assets to be collected witRBimbnths 2,072,318 1,458,125
Sub-total 33,324,77( 23,240,79(

Current income tax liabilities
Deferred income tax liabilities to be collecteceaft2 months (17,069,368) (15,910,906
Deferred income tax liabilities to be collectedhiit 12 months (1,228,367) (196,287
Sub-total (18,297,735 (16,107,193
Net amount of deferred income tax assets (liabgijti 15,027,03b 7,133,597




33.5 Changes in deferred income tax assets (liaki#is)

(1) Changes in deferred income tax assets (lisds)itfor the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2@28s follows:

@D 2024
(In thousands of Korean wo
Reflection i Directly Ending balance
ltem Beginning preofietcolrolr;;,rs] reflectedin |\ ount | Deferred tax| Deferred tax
capital asset liabilities
PP&E (658,918 44,114 - (614,804 1,110,698 (1,725,502
Allowance for bad debt 66,413 127,777 - 194,19( 194,19 -
Others 498,292 435,283 - 933,575 2,765,367 (1,831,793
Temporary provision for loss (365,070 20,253 - (344,817 - (344,817
Defined benefit obligation 119,117 (1,138,795 1,019,67 - 12,363,119 (12,363,119
Allowance for inventory valuation 272,448 291,107 563,555 563,555 -
Ssifgton valuation of biological 205,139 (1,238,797 - (1,033,658 - (1,033,658
Gain on valuation of derivatives (57,082) 184,39( - 127,308 127,308 -
Long-term deposit present value 85,470 (10,402 - 75,068 75,066 -
discoun difference
Gain on insurance adjustment (1,073,135 74,29( - (998,845 - (998,845
Accrued expenses (long-term 139,339 73,707 213,046 213,046 -
employee benefit
Greenhouse gas emission liabilitie 16,527 1,321 17,848 17,84¢ -
Tax loss carried forward 7,885,057 8,009,512 - 15,894,56 15,894,569 -
Deferred i”COS"e‘? taxbefore off- 7133597 6873760 1,019,678 15,027,035 33,324,768 (18,297,734
Off-set effect - (18,297,734 18,297,73
Net deferred income tax assets 7 133 597 15,027,035 15,027,034
(liabilities)




@ 2023

(In thousands of Korean won)
e F Directly Ending balance
Item Beginning Erecjlficc?rolgég reflected in Net amount Deferred tax| Deferred tax
capital asset liabilities

PP&E (1,851,388 1,192,470 - (658,918 1,224,622 (1,883,540
Allowance for bad debt 225,277 (158,864 - 66,413 66,413 -
Others 604,986 (106,694 - 498,292 2,575,116 (2,076,824
Temporary provision for loss (387,167 22,097 - (365,070 - (365,070
Defined benefit obligation - (757,726 876,843 119,117 10,770,659 (10,651,542
Allowance for inventory valuation 203,390 69,058 - 272,448 272,448 -
Ssifgton valuation of biological | 5 775 g56) 2,977,795 . 205,139 205,139 -
Gain on valuation of derivatives 152,175 (209,257 - (57,082 - (57,082
L.ong-term.deposit present value 53,476 31,994 ) 85,47( 85.47( )
discount differenci
Gain on insurance adjustment (1,135,891 62,756 -1 (1,073,135 -| (1,073,135
Accrued expenses (long-term 98,191 41,14¢ . 139,339 139,339 -
employee benefit
Greenhouse gas emission liabilities 19,377 (2,850 - 16,527 16,527 -
Tax loss carried forward 10,210,857 (2,325,800) - 7,885,057 7,885,057 -

Deferred income taxbefore offt  5420,627 836,127 ~ 876,843 7,133,597 23,240,790(16,107,193

Off-set effect - 4 (16,107,193) 16,107,193
Net deferred income tax assets g 450 g7 7,133,597 7,133,597 -
(liabilities)

(2) Deferred income tax expenses due to occurrancedisappearance of temporary differences forydars ended
December 31, 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean wop)
Item 2024 2023
Deferred income tax assets at the end of the year 15,027,034 7,133,597
Deferred income tax assets at the beginning oy¢iae 7,133,59Y 5,420,627
(I?i(fefl:aerr(arﬁge'[sa}xet?xpense due to occurrence and diseqpmEa of temporar (7,893,437 (1,712,970

(3) The income tax effect of temporary differenae®f December 31, 2024 was calculated by appthieg@xpected future
tax rate for the fiscal year in which the tempordifferences are extinguished.

(4) Deferred income tax assets and deferred indamkabilities of the Company are offset and preged in the statement
of financial position only when they relate to inoe taxes levied by the same taxation authoritythedCompany has a
legally enforceable right and intention to offsetrent income tax assets and current income taxitias.



(5) Deferred income tax assets and liabilities emngent income tax assets and liabilities basethertotal amount before
offset as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 are asAfsll

(In thousands of Korean won)
Item 2024 2023
Deferred income tax assets 33,324,769 23,240,79(
Deferred income tax liabilities (18,297,734) (16,107,193
Total 15,027,034 7,133,597
Current income tax assets 308,918 -
Current income tax liabilities - (1,233,405
Total 308,918 (1,233,405

33.6 Details of temporary differences unrecognizeds deferred income tax assets (liabilities)

Details of temporary differences unrecognized dsrded income tax assets (liabilities) as of Decen®i, 2024 and 2023

are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean wgn)

ltem 2024 2023 Reason
Investment in subsidiaries 11,779,287 11,779,287 No disposal plan
Total 11,779,287 11,779,287

34. Earnings per share

34.1 Calculation details of earnings per share

Calculation details of basic earnings per sharéHeryears ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 éoaags:

(In Korean won

Item

2024 2023

Net income attributable to common shares

(17,965,856,701)

10,049,710,279

Weighted average number of common shares issuedwathnding (*)

106,187,182 shares 106,187,182 shargs

Basic earnings per share

(169) 95

(*) The weighted average number of common shaeseid and outstanding is the number of common slaaijested to
the number of treasury shares acquired during teeumting period or newly issued common sharesidering the
weights according to each circulation period torthenber of common shares issued outstanding ahibiegi of the year.

34.2 Calculation details of diluted earnings per sire

Basic earnings per share and diluted earningshmesare the same as the Company has no dilutiemed common

shares.



35 Statement of Cash Flows

35.1 Adjustments of liabilities arising from finandal activities

Adjustments of liabilities arising from financiattvities for the years ended December 31, 20242028 are as follows:

@ 2024
(In thousands of Korean won)
Non-cash change
ltem Beginning | Cash flow (¥ Interest Endin
ginning (M| FXrate Transfer to SuEEs | Crngs g
change |current portio N
amortizatiol
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings 292,048,309 11,607,135 18,578,274 - - -1322,233,718
g””e“.t portion of long-term 1 244 600 (16,784,000 .| 63,190,000 -| (5,000,000) 63,190,000
orrowing:
Current bonds - - - 19,978,99 10,46: -| 19,989,45
Curtent portion of lease 2,044,396 (2,804,002 . 637,895 282,505 2,077,978 2,238,772
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings 71,070,000 6,200,000 -| (63,190,000 - -| 14,080,000
Bonds 19,968,90 - -1 (19,978,99¢ 10,09¢ - -
Non-current lease liabilities| 1,726,91. - - (637,895 - 558,36! 1,647,38.
Total 408,642,51| (1,780,867 18,578,27 - 303,064 (2,363,657| 423,379,33

(*) The cash flows from short-term borrowings indduKRW 176,417,000,000 paid by financial institndo suppliers
under supplier finance arrangements (increase €dsej in trade payables in operating activities Gagh inflow from
financing activities) and KRW 182,648,000,000 phydthe Company to financial institutions at the undy date of the
supplier finance arrangement liabilities.

@ 2023

(In thousands of Korean won)
Non-cash change
Item Beginning | Cash flow ()| Exrate | Transferto| Nterest . Ending
change |current portio expense SRR
amortizatiol
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings 375,433,035 (90,451,539) (1,933,187) - -1 9,000,000 292,048,309
g””e“.t portion of long-term ;4 44 600 (10,690,000 | 21,784,000 -| (9,000,000) 21,784,000
orrowing:

Current bonds - - - - - - -
Curfent portion of lease 2,029,341 (2,783,525 - 106151 323040 1,369,390 2,044,397
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings 47,854,000 45,000,000 -| (21,784,000 - -| 71,070,000
Bonds 19,949,32 - ] ] 19,57¢ -| 19,968,809
Non-current lease liabilities| 1,630,11 - - (1,106,151 - 1,202,94| 1,726,91.

Total 466,585,81| (58,925,064 (1,933,187 - 342,614 2,572,33|408,642,51

(*) The cash flows from short-term borrowings indduKRW 204,440,000,000 paid by financial institnsao suppliers
under supplier finance arrangements (increase €dsej in trade payables in operating activities Gagh inflow from
financing activities) and KRW 205,009,000,000 plydthe Company to financial institutions at the uniy date of the
supplier finance arrangement liabilities



35.2 Significant Non-cash Investing and Financing étivities

The significant non-cash transactions arising fiaresting and financing activities for the yearsles December 31,
2024 and 2023 are as follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)
ltem 2024 2023
Trade payables related to the acquisition of PP&E 424,073 2,499,912
Transfer from construction in progress 17,726,179 47,171,030
Reclassification of borrowings to current portion 3,188,996 21,784,000
Acquisition cost of right-of-use assets 6,917,423 8,223,033

36. Related Parties

36.1 Status of related parties with transactions

(1) Details of the companies that have a speciatiomship with the Company as of December 31, 2824as follows:

Category

Company Name

Controlling Entity

Harim Holdings Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary

HBC Co., Ltd.
Singgreen FS Co., Ltd.
Singgreen Vina Co., Lt

Other related partieg

Related parties of Harim Holdings Co., Ltd.




36.2 Transactions such as sale and purchase withated parties

The Company engages in transactions with relatgtepasuch as sale of goods and provision of sesyiand transactions
such as sale and purchase with related partieghdoyears ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 ao@s<:

@ 2024
(In thousands of Korean won)
Category Company Sales Other income r:vl;rfnhaﬁﬁ;f Pugr’c(:)r:)é(ijs:e @i e)%t:r?;e Agﬁ;';’gg n
Controlling | \-vim Holdings Co., Ltd. 426,161 ; ; .| 4,834,070 ;
Entity

Subsidiaried HBC Co., Ltd. 68,934 - 2,596,990 126,558 122,237 93,248
Singgreen FS Co., Ltd. 2,286,2B9 37,388/ 1,876,026 - 123 -
Excello Equine R&D Cente 3,60: - - - - -
Glyde Co., Ltd. 252,45) - - - 40,598 -
Donglim Corporation 2,988 - - - 100,640 791,310
DD F&B Co., Ltd. 8,300 - - - - -
Maxican Co., Ltd. 4,719,985 - - - 263 -
Sunjin Corporation 334,009 - 253,411 - 1,200 -
Sunjin FS Co., Ltd. 71,155 - 21,249 213,628 5,990 -
Sunjin Farm Co., Ltd. 32,869 - - - - -
Ceti Co., Ltd. - - - - 590,000
Ever Miracle Co., Ltd. - - 6,864 280,188 -
Eco Capital Co., Ltd. 4,808 - - - - -
ND Co., Ltd. 190,80 - - - - -
N Bicorn Co., Ltd. 116,03p - - - 44,871 -
NS Shopping Co., Ltd. 4,533,590 - - - 984,815 -
ORPUM Co., Ltd. 5,862,521 46,604 1,722,815 121,633 - -
Charm Trading Co., Ltd. 6,955,208 - 2,395,177 34,520 12,608 -
Other Farmsco Co., Ltd. 1,903,664 - 35,883 854,922 26,622 -
related | POSSM Co., Ltd. 14,637 - - - - -
parties Harim Industry Co., Ltd. 2,347,234 297,971 563,661 3,373,918 858,099 -
Harim Distribution Co., Ltd. 3,744,429 - - - - -
Harim Pet Food Co., Ltd. 1,142,186 - - 7,637 - -
Harim Food Co., Ltd. 1,659 - - - - -
Hangang Food Co., Ltd. 36,152,459 16,842 1,171,527 312,675 6,056 -
oS | Jmsmag |
Sunjin Hanmaeul Co., Ltd. 13,795 - - - - -
Soonwoori Co., Ltd. 3,728 - - 2,197 2,190 -
Joowonsan Ducks Co., Ltd. 683,095 - 2,528 4,273,942 2,208 -
Farmsco Bio Inte Co., Ltd. 2,999 - - - - -
Harim Animal Clinic Center 642 - - - - -
Jeil Feed Co., Lt 1,513,44 - - 494,04t 1,082,90: -
G-Fore Co., Ltd. 1,30f7 - - - - -
Pan Ocear_l Trading & Logistics Pte. L 918 ) ) ) ) )

(Korea Office
Pan Ocean Co., Ltd. 107,188 - - - - -
Korea Thumb Vet Co., Lt 158,64 -| 14,058,67 - 142,77¢ -
Total 73,661,75! 398,805 49,661,143 9,822,542 8,548,457 1,474,558




@ 2023

(In thousands of Korean wo

Category Company Sales B T Purchase_ of| Purchase of Other Acquisition
raw material good: expense of PP&E
Cogart‘;;"”g Harim Holdings Co., Ltd. 424,793 - - -| 3619689 309,857
HBC Co., Ltd. 105,10% 12,363 4,647,189 1,769,905 2,436 -
... | Harim Animal Clinic (*2) 1,353 - - - - -
Subsidiarieg—
Singgreen FS Co., Ltd. 2,306,644 - 2,708,19¢ - 180 -
BNP Co., Ltd. (*3) 87,76% 19,368 1,830,833 37,534 9,812 377,164
s CE T : Jomad [ ]
Excello Equine R&D Center 3,254 - - - - -
Glyde Co., Ltd. 372,978 - - - - -
Donglim Corporation 3,619 - - - 71,660 608,500
DD F&B Co., Ltd. 14,160 - - - - -
Maxican Co., Ltd. 4,968 - - - - -
Sunjin Corporation 298,858 - - - 1,200 -
Sunjin FS Co., Ltd. 64,865 - 21,741 457,823 3,746 -
Sunjin Farm Co., Ltd. 47,773 - - 83 - -
Ever Miracle Co., Ltd. - - 36 279,977 -
HS Food Co., Ltd. 22,833 - - 92 - -
Eco Capital Co., Ltd. 8,135 - - - - -
ND Co., Ltd. 47,70( - - - - -
N Bicorn Co., Ltd. 160,058 - - - 29,440 -
NS Shopping Co., Ltd. 3,992,090 3,715 - - 661,787 -
rglt:tgi ORPUM Co., Ltd. 6,508,248 48,670 2,435,339 - - -
parties | Charm Trading Co., Ltd. 6,916,561 - 3,961,824 560 19,709 -
Farmsco Co., Ltd. (*1) 1,841,719 - 279,953 1,109 16,929 -
POSSM Co., Ltd. 15,316 - - - - -
Harim Industry Co., Ltd. 3,624,996 8,908 588,137 7,676,982 171,820 -
Harim Distribution Co., Ltd. 8,621,486 - - - - -
Harim Pet Food Co., Ltd. 986,451 - - 5,804 - -
Harim Food Co., Ltd. 2,597 - - - - -
Sunjin Hanmaeul Co., Ltd. 13,6%0 - - - - -
Soonwoori Hanwoo Co., Ltd. 4,916 3,029 - 4,989 - -
Joowonsan Ducks Co., Ltd. 482,350 - 36,579 3,427,191 117,573 -
Farmsco Bio Inte Agricultural Co., Ltd 8,992 - - - - -
Jeil Feed Co., Ltd. 1,381,298 - - 174,140 1,103,157 -
Pan Ocean Co., Ltd. 99,998 - - - - -
Hangang Food Co., Ltd. 12,154,791 19,195 1,311,037 74,791 1,000 -
Korea Thumb Vet Co., Ltd. 107,485 -| 13,077,708 - 191,985 -
Korea Biotech Co., Ltd. - - - - 2,462 1,917,777
Total 50,737,794 115,248 65,645,879 13,631,039 6,304,558 3,213,298

(*1) The Company has made agreements for lendiwgnnaterials of compounded feed with other relatadigs and the amount of
transfer (cost of raw materials rented) is KRW1,988,000 and the transaction amount (cost of reedvew materials) for the prior

period is KRW1,984,500,000.

(*2) During 2023, Harim Animal Clinic Co., Ltd. was liglsted due to conversion to a non-profitable corama

(*3) During 2023, BNP Co., Ltd. was absorbed and mengexitis subsidiary, HBC Co., Ltd.

=



36.3 Details of Financial Transaction with RelatedParties

Details of financial transaction with related pastfor the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2828sdollows:

@ 2024
(In thousands of Korean wo
Category Company Dividend payment
Controlling entity Harim Holdings Co., Ltd. 1,827,853
Others Major Management and Others 48,498
@ 2023
(In thousands of Korean wo
Category Company Dividend payment
Controlling entity Harim Holdings Co., Ltd. 1,218,564
Others Major Management and Others 32,358




36.4 Details of Receivables from and Payables to Beed Parties

Details of receivables from and payables to relatdies as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 ardlas/fo

D Dec 31, 2024

(In thousands of Korean wo
Receivables Payables
Category Company Trade Security Account Account
receivabli deposit receivable UIEERD FERRIID payable
Cogf]rt?t')','”g Harim Holdings Co., Ltd. 30,151 4,671,814 1,047,584 ; 2,479,691
Subsidiaries H.BC Co., Ltd. - - 9,352 - 15,990
Singgreen FS Co., Ltd. 148,881 - 714 99,830 10,000
Excello Equine R&D Center 88 - - - -
Glyde Co., Ltd. 22,584 - - - -
Maxican Co., Ltd. 22,189 - - - -
Sunjin Corporation 30,043 - - 13,718 -
Sunjin FS Co., Ltd. 7,035 - - 13,256 -
Sunjin Farm Co., Ltd. 1,720 - - - -
Ever Miracle Co., Ltd. - - - 674 19,185
N Bicorn Co., Ltd. 8,206 - - - -
NS Shopping Co., Ltd. 127,813 - - - -
Othertr.e'ate ORPUM Co., Ltd. 291,046 - 23,685 18,796 -
parties Charm Trading Co., Ltd. 250,807 - - 195,077 13,385
Farmsco Co., Ltd. 10,199 - - 2,913 -
Harim Industry Co., Ltd. 159,833 - 67,238 207,343 372,964
Harim Pet Food Co., Ltd. 92,944 - - 643 -
Hangang Food Co., Ltd. 5,567,799 - 1,544 75,818 -
Soonwoori Hanwoo Co., Ltd. 129 - - - -
Joowonsan Ducks Co., Ltd. 47,134 - - 246,675 125
Jeil Feed Co., Ltd. 93,058 1,583,255 - 15,941 157,832
Korea Thumb Vet Co., Ltd. 11,666 - - 818,774 16,280
Total 6,923,325 6,255,065 1,150,117 1,709,458 3,085,452




@ Dec 31, 2023

(In thousands of Korean wo

Receivables Payables
Category Company Trade Security Account | .o el Account
receivabli deposit receivable payable

Coé‘f]rt‘i’t')','”g Harim Holdings Co., Ltd. 16,8846 2,775,860 - - 7,756,548

Subsidiaries HBC Co. Ltd. 12,60¢ - - 808,96 -
Singgreen FS Co., Ltc 42,15¢ - - 77,08t 10,00(
PAN OCEAN TRADING &
LOGISTICS PTELTD. - - - 2,799,271 -
Excello Equine R&D Center 88 - - - -
Glyde Co., Ltd. 25,654 - - - -
DD F&B Co., Ltd. 528§ - - - -
Sunjin Corporation 14,826 - - - -
Sunjin FS Co., Ltc 5,76¢ - - 14,23( 31z
Sunjin Farm Co., Ltd. 3,238 - - - -
Ever Miracle Co., Ltd. - - - 25,446
N Bicorn Co., Ltd. 13,640 - - - -
NS Shopping Co., Ltd. 145,943 - - - -
ORPUMCo., Ltd 701,83! - 26,46¢ 144,06 -

Oth‘zrtrii':‘te‘j Charm Trading Co., Ltd. 340,448 - - 220,385 12,005

P Farmsco Co., Ltd. 48,538 - - 3,285 -
Harim Industry Co., Ltd. 164,545 - 4,714 337,935 72,810
Harim Distribution Co., Ltd. 33,846 - - - -
Harim Pet Food CoLtd. 76,63t - - 741 -
Harim Food Co., Ltd. 48 - - - -
Soonwoori Hanwoo Co., Ltd 129 - 3,332 - -
Joowonsan Ducks Co., Ltd. 39,922 - - 316,927 -
Farmsco Bio Inte Agricultural 657 ) _ _ )
Co., Ltd
Jeil Feed Co., Ltd. 68,094 595,428 - 70,750 96,937
Hangang Food Co., Ltd. 6,118,194 - 4,132 48,427 -
Korea Thumb Vet Co., Lt 9,15¢ - - 1,389,20 42,26(
Total 7,883,405 3,371,288 38,642 6,231,219 8,016,315

(*) It includes the fine of KRW5,732,000,000 to paid to the controlling entity, Harim Holdings Chbtd.



36.5 There are no guarantees and collaterals prowed by the Company to related parties as of Dec 32024.

36.6 There are no guarantees received from relatqghrties as of Dec 31, 2024.

36.7 Renumeration for Major Management

The Company has determined that registered offiaéifs important authorities and responsibilities fbe planning,
operation and control of its activities are the @napnanagement, and the remunerations paid for magmagement for the

years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 are aw$ollo

n)

(In thousands of Korean wo

ltem 2024 2023
Short-term employee wage 2,436,852 2,857,804
Other long-term employee benefits 213 -
Retirement benefits 202,107 872,197
Total 2,639,172 3,730,001

37. Operating Segments

The Company has three (3) reporting segments, whiehstrategic business units. The informationtedldao these
segments is disclosed in the consolidated finarstéaements of the Company.



38. Dividends
38.1 Dividends Payment

D Calculation of dividends for the years ended Demen31, 2024 and 2023 is as follows:

(In thousands of Korean won)
Iltem 2024 2023
Number of shares entitled to dividends - 106,187,182 shares
Par value per share 500 500
Dividend rate on par value - 6%
Dividend amount - 3,185,615,460

@ Calculation of dividend payout ratio for the yearsled December 31, 2024 and 2023 is as follows:

(In thousands of Korean wo

Item

2024

2023

Dividend amount

3,185,615,46

Net income (loss)

(17,965,856,701

10,049,710,27

©

Dividend payout ratio

31.70%

(® Calculation of dividend yield for the years endescBmber 31, 2024 and 2023 is as follows:

(In thousands of Korean wo

Iltem 2024 2023
Dividend amount per share - 30
Closing price on the year-end date 2,805 4,38(
Dividend yield - 0.68%




Audit or Review Opinion on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Harim Corporation

This Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Cohtiver Financial Reporting is attached in accocganith
the Article 8 of the Act on External Audit for Sto€ompanies of the Republic of Korea, as a redwduditing
the Internal Control over Financial Reporting imnection with the audit of its financial statemefuts the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2024.

Attachment: 1. Independent Auditor’'s Report oniné Control over Financial Reporting

2. Report on Operating Status of Internal Corax@r Financial Reporting



Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of

Harim Corporation

Opinion on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We have audited the internal control over financggorting (“ICFR”) of Harim Corporation (hereinaift
referred to as the “Company”) based on the Coned¢pitamework for Design and Operation of ICFR as of
December 31, 2024.

In our opinion, the Company’s ICFR has been eféetyi designed and operated, in all material respect of
December 31, 2024 in accordance with the Conceptaahework for Design and Operation of ICFR.

We also have audited, in accordance with Koreandatals on Auditing (“KSA”), the statement of finaailc
position as of December 31, 2024 and the stateofex@mprehensive income, statement of changestiityeq
and statement of cash flows for the year then enaled notes to the financial statements, includiagerial
accounting policy information of the Company and @port dated March 13, 2025 expressed an ungpdlif
opinion thereon.

Basis for Opinion on ICFR

We conducted our audit in accordance with KSA. @sponsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for thedit of ICFR section of our report. We are indegant of
the Company in accordance with the ethical requar@mthat are relevant to our audit of ICFR inRepublic
of Korea, and we have fulfilled our other ethicasponsibilities in accordance with these requirdmanNe
believe that the audit evidence we have obtainedffscient and appropriate to provide a basisoiaropinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged thi Governance for ICFR

Management is responsible for designing, implemegntind maintaining an effective ICFR, and for asiswg
the effectiveness of the ICFR included in the aquamying Report on the Operation Status of the ICFR.

Those charged with governance are responsiblevinseeing the Company’s ICFR process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of ICFR

Our responsibility is to express an opinion of @@mpany’s ICFR based on our audit. We conductedodit
in accordance with KSA. Those standards require weaplan and perform the audit to obtain reasanabl
assurance about whether effective ICFR was magdaimall material respects.

An audit of ICFR involves performing procedurestuain audit evidence as to whether a material nesk
exists. The procedures selected depend on theodaditdgment, including the assessment of thesriblat a
material weakness exists. An audit also includssnig and evaluating the design and operating &ffatess
of ICFR based on obtaining an understanding of I@R& the assessed risk.



Definition and Inherent Limitations of ICFR

ICFR of the Company is implemented by those chawgéld governance, management, and other employees
and is a process designed to provide reasonahleaase regarding the reliability of financial refpog and the
preparation of financial statements for externappees in accordance with International Financepdtting
Standards as adopted by the Republic of Korea FRS”). ICFR of the Company includes those polieied
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenanceadrds that, in reasonable detail, accurately amly feflect

the transactions and dispositions of the assetth@fCompany; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to pempia@tion of financial statements in accordanck WIERS,

and that receipts and expenditures of the Compempeing made only in accordance with authorizatioh
management and directors of the Company; and ¢8)g® reasonable assurance regarding preventiimely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or akgpn of assets of the Company that could haxeaterial
effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, ICFR may n@wvent or detect misstatements of the financiagéstants.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectivends future periods are subject to the risk tha&RQnay
become inadequate because of changes in condibortbat the degree of compliance with the poli@es
procedures may deteriorate.

The engagement partner on the audit resultingisninikdependent auditors’ report is CPA, Hwang Y &aok.

Samil PricewaterhouseCoopers

Representative Director YOON Hoon Soo

100 Hangang-daero, Yongsan-gu, Seoul

Mar. 13, 2025

This report is effective as of the audit reporteddiarch 13, 20256 Certain subsequent events
circumstances, which may occur between the ayglitrtelate and the time of reading this report, ddalve
a material impact on the Company’s Internal Contsadr Financial Reportinghccordingly, the readers (¢
the auditreport should understand that there is a possiltiiat the above audit report may have to be rdv
to reflect the impact of such subsequent eventsroumstances, if any.




Report on Operating Status of Internal Control overFinancial Reporting

To the Shareholders, Board of Directors and Audin@ittee of
Harim Corporation

We, asthe Chief Exeautive Officer andthe Internal Control Managesf the Companyassessedperding
statusof the Company'dnternalControlover FinancialReporting(1CFR”) for the yearendedDecember
31,2023.

Design andoperationof ICFR is the responsibilityof the Company’smanagemenincluding the Chief
ExecutiveOfficer andthe Internal Control Managg(collectively, “We”, “Our” or “Us").

We evaluatedwhetherthe Companyeffectively designedand operatedts ICFR to preventand detect
errors or frauds which may cause a misstatementn financial statementdo ensure preparatioand
disclosureof reliablefinancialinformation.

We used the Conceptual Framework for Design andrafipa of Internal Control over Financial
Reporting established by the Operating Committdatefnal Control over Financial Reporting in Korea
(the “ICFR Committee”) as the criteria for desigrdaperation of the Company’s ICFR.

In addition, we conducted an evaluation of ICFReola@n the Management Guideline for Evaluation and
Reporting of Effectiveness of Internal Control ov@nancial Reporting established by the ICFR
Committee.

Based on our assessment, we concluded that the@ysgCFR is designed and operated effectively as
of December 31, 2024, in all material respectscitordance with the Conceptual Framework for Design
and Operation of Internal Control over FinanciapBeing

We certify that this report does not contain anfrumstatement of a fact, or omit to state a facessary
to be presented herein. We also certify that #yport does not contain or present any statemerithwh
might cause material misunderstandings of the readed we have reviewed and verified this repdh w
sufficient care.

January 31, 2025

Representative Directdeong Hoseok
Internal Control Manager Hong Seokjin



Information on External Audit

This Information on External Audit is attached puast to the provision of the Article 18(3) of

the “Act on External Audit of Stock Companies”.

1. Scope of Audit

Harim Corporation
For the Year Ended December2824

Company
Audited fiscal year

2. Number of Audit Participants and Audit Hours (Unit: person, time)

CPA responsible for audit Experts in Eéﬁg:ﬁ in
Quality | pirector in IT- madeindustry
Participants / No. of | control charge | Registered| Probation| audit/tax/ including Total
personnel and time |  reviewer (Engagemer| CPA CPA | valuation, construction
Partner) e | contract, etc
2024| 2023 | 2024 | 2023| 2024 | 2023|2024 2023(2024{2023] 2024 |2023| 2024| 2023
No. of personnel input 5 5 1 1 10 11| 4| 3 5 7 - - 25 27
Quarter/alf| 7 | 16 | 6o | 43| o03|815|69|126| - | - | - | - |1,0491,000
Time | Year review
Audit 97 91 86 99| 1,5271,368/230( 190 | 353 | 467 - - 12,288 2,215
Total 114 | 107 146 | 142 |2,425|2,183(299| 316 | 353 | 467 - - 13,337/ 3,215




3. Major Descriptions on Audit

Classification

Details

investigation

. Period 06.13.2024 ~ 10.07.20p4 5 |days
Overall audit plan — — - -
Decision on procedures and timing of audit basetheroverall understandi
(start phase) Contents :
of the Company and industry
) Input - . :
Period ; : Descriptions on major audit works
Full time Part time
09.19.2023 ~
06.23.2023 d ) [Evaluation of design of internal control over ficad
07.17.2023 ~ 10 days 5 |persons 3 person Teporting, early demonstration audit
12.11.2023
Major information or] 10 16.2023 ~
field audit 10.20.2023 10 |davd 5 s 3 [Evaluation of design of internal control over fiéi
12.11.2023 ~ ays persons person Teporting, early demonstration audit
12.15.2023
01.16.2024 ~ Question, analytical procedures and sample
01.19.2024 5 ldavs 5 s 3 ((documentation, realculation and etc.) on signific
01.22.2024 ~ ¥s persons person%alances and disclosures in the consolidated
01.26.2024 separate financial statements
Due diligence on Time 01.13.2025 1 day
inventories Location Head Office in Iksan, Factory in Jeoneup
(attendance) Target Whole of Inventories
Due diligence on Time 01.13.2025 | 1| day
financial assets Location Head Office in Iksan
(attendance) Target Membership and etc.
Fmanc!al (0] Paya_bles & (0] Investigation through lawyers
External transactions Receivables
investigations Other

Inventories stored in other places

Communications wit]
those charged with

Communicatior

N

4 |Times

governance Period 05.08.2024 / 08.12.2024 / 11.05.2024 / Q2025
Use of external Activity -
experts Period - ‘ - ‘ day

4. Communications with Auditor (Audit Committee)

No. Date

Attendees

Method

Descriptions on major disouss

Company: Audit Committee
1 | 05.08.2024 External Auditors: Responsible
Director and CPA in charg

Physically
Meeting

Quarterly review progress report, Key audit
plans, Key audit matterResponsibilities of
the management and audit

Company: Audit Committee
2 | 08.12.2024 External Auditors: Responsible

Physically

Half-year review progress report, Key audit

Director and CPA in char

Director and CPA in char Meeting | plans and etc.
Company: Audit Committee . . .
3 | 11.05.2024 External Auditors: Responsible Physpally Half-year review progress report, Key audit
! : Meeting | matters and etc.
Director and CPA in chari
Company: Audit Committee Phvsicall Year-end audit progress report, Independer
4 | 02.11.2025 External Auditors: Responsible M)e/etingy Subsequent events, key audit matters, Inte

control over financial reporting and ¢

ce,

r|nal





